
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

4.00 pm TUESDAY, 29TH MARCH, 2022 
REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this meeting and a separate invitation will 

be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 

member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 
725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 

found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Verbal Update on the Impact of Covid-19 on the 
Service  

 

4. Adult and Children’s Services Carers Strategy   

 To consider the attached report 
 

5 - 12 

5. Vale, Valleys and Cardiff (VVC) Adoption 
Collaborative Annual Report for 1st April 2020 to 
31st March 2021  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

13 - 78 

6. Living Well - Corporate Self-Evaluation   

 To consider the attached report 
 

79 - 106 

7. Forward Work Programme 2021/22   

 To consider the attached report 
 

107 - 122 

8. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

9. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

10. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors: D Hughes, G Richards, D Sammon and 

I Thomas 
 
Co-optees: (none) 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Adult and Children’s Services Carers Strategy 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1  The report outlines the activities undertaken in support of carers within Adult 

Services and Children’s Services.  It outlines our objectives and intended activities 
moving forward and the links to the Regional Carers Strategy.   

   

2.0  RECOMMENDATION  
 

2.1 Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive this report and to raise questions and 
challenge leading to improvement. 

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report outlines the activities undertaken in support of carers within Adult 

Services and Children’s Services. 
 
3.2 Unpaid carers play an essential role in supporting people in the community as part of 

the wider health and social care sector. The support they provide is varied and a 
number of them provide support to people with highly complex needs. 

 
3.3 Young carers are children and young people under 18 who provide regular and on-

going care and emotional support to a family member who is physically or mentally 
ill, disabled, or misuses substances. The provision for Merthyr Young carers is 
located within Children’s Services Strategy under its Early Help Building Block to 
Success.  

 

Date Written 16th March 2022 

Report Author Rachel Gray / Helen Lang 

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 29th March 2022 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



3.4 As part of the Regional Work programme of the Cwm Taf Social Services and 
Wellbeing Partnership Board, a new Cwm Taf Carers Strategy was developed in 
2016 to replace the separate plans of partner organisations. Working with partners 
across Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and Bridgend and including carers 
themselves, the Cwm Taf Carers Strategy 2016-2019 covers carers of all ages.  

 
3.5 The following principles have been used by the Cwm Taf Carers Partnership Group 

to inform its work:  
 

 We will promote and support effective communication across the partnership; 

 We will make sure that users of our services, particularly carers, are able to 
influence the work of the partnership; 

 We will focus on what matters to the people and communities of Cwm Taf; 

 We will promote and develop solutions towards preventing problems occurring 
getting worse for people in Cwm Taf; 

 We will promote and support collaboration and integration;  

 We will make sure that we strike a balance between short term needs and longer 
term goals;  

 We will listen to, understand and respect individual organisational views and the 
views of other parties;  

 We will conduct business with transparency and openness; and  

 We will fully utilise the wide range of skills, knowledge and experience which are 
available to the Group.  

 
3.6 The strategy is currently under review and now includes Bridgend as part of our new 

regional footprint. 
 
3.7 The Cwm Taf Morgannwg steering group have met several times within 2021/22 to 

draft an updated version of the carers’ strategy. Unfortunately, this work remains 
outstanding. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 

Adult Services  

 
4.1 Throughout 2021/22, partners in the region built upon the success of the previous 

year and continued to work collaboratively together and with other stakeholders in 
improving recognition of Carers and providing appropriate information and support.  

 
4.2  Key areas of work that were undertaken were: 
 

 Worked with partners to deliver the annual Action Plan. 

 Continued work with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Partnership Group to oversee 
implementation of the Strategy, reporting to the SSWB Partnership Board.  

 Carers innovative respite Welsh Government grant 

 Carers support hubs  

 Carer support contract re-evaluated by carer coproduction with a view to 
retender. 

 

Page 6



4.3 Worked with Third sector partnership work within Merthyr Tydfil to deliver: 
 

 Primary Care Cluster GPSO’s who engaged, signposted, offered advice and 
worked with patients to influence cultural and behavioural change for service 
users within a Primary Care setting. 

 VAMT community coordinators provided information, advice and signposting to 
local community groups, activities and services.  

 Continued to deliver the Merthyr and the Valleys Mind Carers STAR Project 

 Continued to deliver Alzheimer’s society dementia connects and side by side 
programme. 

 Funding was secured by Dowlais Community centre to promote carers respite 
with wellbeing activities  

 Funding was secured by Citizens Advice Bureau to create the CAB for Carers 
project and carers information hub  

 Funding secured by Cancer Aid Merthyr Tydfil to create their project Caring for 
Cancer Carers 

 
 Young Carers  
 
4.4  The Young Carers Service within Merthyr Tydfil has been provided by Barnardos 

since 1997. The service operates an open referral system, accepting referrals from 
young carers themselves, their families and professionals.  

 
4.5 During the first three quarters of 2020/21 118 young carers engaged with the Young 

Carers Service. 11 new young carers assessments were undertaken, all of which led 
to a support plan. A further 152 young carers support plans were reviewed within the 
set timescales.  

 
4.6 Social Services report to Scrutiny Committee in March 2021 shared that overall, 61% 

of young carers who had attended the young carers programme reported an 
improvement in their wellbeing. Covid restrictions and subsequent changes in 
service delivery were fundamental components as to why the measure was lower 
than previous years. However, quarterly rises had been noted (Q1 27%, Q2 84% 
and Q3 89%). 78% of families that engaged with the service report an improvement 
in their families’ resilience.  

 
4.7  Merthyr Young carers despite Covid pandemic barriers had engaged in participation 

events, including meeting with the Education Minister and participating in the ‘Here I 
am’ Campaign which is now in schools being used as a resource to tackle 
stereotypes, looking at identity and celebrating differences.  
 

4.8 The Young Carers Service had continued to expand its partnership working to 
ensure that our young carers and their families are safe, stimulated and supported. 
The Young Carers Service had continued to work closely with the Early Help Hub 
and Education to ensure the range of support available to young carers is utilised.  

 
 
 

Page 7



5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The pandemic has continued to place additional pressures on unpaid carers as 

whilst services such as day services have re-opened they are at a much reduced 
level to enable social distancing. Planned respite services are now available in care 
home settings with some restrictions are still in place.  

 
5.2 We have been working to provide support in alternative ways such as direct 

payments and more sitting services in the person’s home 
 
5.3 We recognise the need to support carers and in order to do this we have needed to 

seek alternative ways of engaging with them to develop and evaluate new services 
and the following are now in place: 

 

 Mechanism for contacting to provide support through COVID  

 Establishment of a social media group for carers in Merthyr Tydfil to share up to 
date information from the Local Authority and our third sector partners  

 Funding acquired for carers to access innovative respite away from their caring 
role. 

 Review of the current carers assessment to identify what needs to change for it to 
be more carer friendly.  

 Review and development of the regional carers strategy (ongoing).  

 Development of a local carers’ strategy for Merthyr Tydfil carers  

 Worked with our WCCIS team to identify how many carers have had carers 
assessments undertaken and work on promoting these. 

 Attendance of young carers transition group to identify carers and their needs 
before they become adult carers.  

 
Young Carers  

 
5.4 During the first three quarters of 2021/22 130 young carers engaged with the Young 

Carers Service. 36 new young carers assessments were undertaken, all of which led 
to a support plan. A further 261 young carers support plans were reviewed within the 
set timescales. You will note that comparatively with 2020/2021 quarter three figures 
there has been an increase in carers engaged, new young carer assessments 
undertaken, and the number of young carer support plans reviewed. 

 
5.5 This year there is a clear theme that young carers have much more complex needs, 

requiring longer and even more intensive support due to the increased emotional 
and mental health need linked to lockdown, bereavement, poverty and social 
isolation. As a result, through the Local Authority’s partnership with Barnardo’s there 
has been intensive one-to-one support alongside the opportunity to engage in group 
sessions to support and improve young carers mental health and wellbeing.  
Barnardos undertook 344 socially distanced doorstep visits during Q1, Q2 and Q3.  
When restrictions were eased Barnardos were very proactive taking the opportunity 
to facilitate 64 small group sessions over the same period.   

 
 
 

Page 8



5.6 The Barnardo’s framework shows that 94% of young carers reported improved or 
maintained mental health, at quarter three 2020/2021 this was at 61% showing a 
33% increase in the reported wellbeing of our young carers. In 2021/22 97% of 
young carers reported improved or maintained social networks and 100% reported 
improved or maintained development through new experiences/interests.  Given that 
this is reflective of pandemic experiences and restrictions which has impacted 
access into groups and activities, these results as exceptionally positive. 

 

5.7 Young carers and their families have given positive feedback in respect of accessing 
and engaging with the service, examples include: 

 

 Referring to attending the Royal Albert Hall - ‘Oh it was fantastic, I’ve never been 
to London before it’s awesome. I really enjoyed singing, I was nervous at first but 
then I just sang and sang’.  F aged 17. 

 ‘I am so glad I had this opportunity, never been to London before and excited to 
be staying the night with my dad and gran’.  F aged 14. 

 “A better and more patient person now she has strategies for when she gets 
angry.  You have all helped her so much that it’s started to heal my family. We 
have worked hard and we are now really close, but you have given us the tools to 
do so.”  Parent Quote. 

 
5.8 Young carers continued their commitment throughout 2021/2022 and participated in 

various awareness raising activities which helped to promote them on a local, 
regional and National platform. Merthyr Young carers have also continued to ensure 
that young carer’s have the opportunity to have their ‘Voices heard’ whenever the 
opportunity arises. Partnership work has enabled young carers and their families to 
access food and confectionary packs, clothing, wellbeing packs, arts and crafts 
packs. The Service continues to work with various partners to ensure young carers 
are safe, supported, stimulated and inspired to participate in a variety of 
opportunities: 

 

 Local Schools – Supporting Young Carer’s with Educational issues, helping to 
raise awareness of Young Carer’s 

 Cwm Taf Morgannwg Health Board – Awareness raising of Young Carer’s 
through various avenues 

 Artis Community – Funding provided for art tutor and workshops for Young 
Carer’s and family members. Ongoing support Young Carer’s choir 

 Community Music Wales – Poetry tutor to support music/poetry workshops 

 Poet Laureate Martin Daws – Rap, Rhyme, Music and Poetry tutor 

 Stephens and George Charity – Organising and funding for Hays Winter Book 
Festival 

 Children’s Commissioner Office – Ongoing support for Young Carers Community 
Ambassador’s 

 MTHA Fit and Fed – Funding for healthy snacks and food 

 Local Benefactors – Wellbeing packs, clothing, stationary, Xmas gifts, food, 
refreshments and confectionary. 

 
 

Page 9



5.9 Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers have been keen to engage in various virtual and face to 
face events.  This have included:  

 

 Rap, Rhyme, Music and Poetry - Young Carer’ s have continued to work with 
Martin Daws, during the last quarter they have written and added music to pieces 
of rap, these pieces were paying homage to key working and emergency services 
and families. These sessions have provided Young Carer’s with many new skills 
and the confidence to demonstrate skills learnt. 

 Choir Sessions- The choir have been working really hard preparing for two big 
events these being performing at The Royal Albert Hall London and performing in 
Barnardo’s live streamed Kidsmas 2021 fundraiser at City Hall Birmingham.  

 Family arts and crafts sessions- Young carers and their family members had 
the opportunity to attend 10 zoom sessions entitled ‘Space for me’. This was a 
creative arts project that explored making, music and mindfulness. It gave both 
Young Carer’s, siblings and parents the chance to connect through creativity 
whilst having fun and allowing space for them to focus on themselves. Excellent 
feedback was received from all participants. 

 Community Ambassadors Meeting- Merthyr Young Carer Community 
Ambassadors met with Children’s Commissioner Sally Holland, and members of 
Carms Youth Council, Vale Youth Service and Caerphilly Youth Forum. The 
groups shared and listened to updates from other groups around work 
undertaken for children’s Rights. They discussed ways forward with possibility of 
face-to-face meeting, took part in a Christmas quiz and had a Q and A session 
with Sally Holland. Merthyr young carers spoke about how they have been raising 
awareness of caring. 

 After School Group Sessions- With stringent risk assessments in place, we 
have now been able to recommence face to face working. We have held 6 face to 
face sessions at The Engine House Dowlais where Young Carer’s have met with 
others. Young carers have said that they are really glad to meet with others, they 
were all excited to meet each other. Moreover, new young carers took the 
opportunity to join group, meet with others and have even forged new friendships. 

 Kidsmas Video/film making - 12 young carers participated in a film making 
session in the 3G’s arts and media Centre. Sam Darby Cooper alongside a 
filming crew from London worked with the young people to create Kidsmas film 
2021. Most importantly the session gave the Young Carer’s a chance to tell their 
story. The filming crew were in Merthyr for 3 days which gave them a really good 
insight into our wonderful community. 

 
5.10 Young Carers have participated in the development of a Young Carers ID card this is 

an initiative from Welsh Government.  The launch of the YC ID card was scheduled 
to take place on 16th March 2022 at the Red House Merthyr Tydfil alongside 
showcasing the book that they have produced entitled ‘Rap and Rhyme’.   
Unfortunately, due to rising COVID cases and subsequent key speaker illness the 
launch has been postponed.   

 
5.11 The Young Carers Service has continued to work closely with the Early Help Hub 

and Education to ensure the range of support available to young carers is utilised.  
 
 

Page 10



5.12 In March 2021 Young Carers’ Scrutiny Report we shared a clear vision for where we 
wanted to be. The pandemic continued to create barriers to us achieving the 
developments we had aimed for in 2020/21.   However, we have managed to 
achieve the 7 actions that were set out whist continuing to focus on ‘safety first’ 
models of support.  Barnardos continued to engage with Young Carers despite the 
restrictions by continuing to adapt a hybrid model of work which is evidenced above.   

 
5.13 Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers’ Service want to ensure that young carers are provided 

with the right support at the right time to maximise the likelihood of young carers 
meeting their potential. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Our vision as a Local Authority for how we support carers is overarching for both 

adult and young carers We are committed to work with our Local Authority carers in 
a way that:  

 

 Continues to ensure that we coproduce with carers to ensure their voices are 
heard. 

 Ensures that how we structure and deliver our services are through evaluation 
work with carers. 

 Reduces the level of social isolation that many of our carers face. 

 Awareness raising of unpaid carers and what support services are available.  

 Supporting carers in a life alongside their caring role and accessing the respite 
they need.  

 Promote a carer friendly workplace for unpaid carers whereby employers are 
aware of additional time carers may need away from the workplace within their 
caring role.  

 Embed young carer cards for young carers within the Local Authority and develop 
a sustainable model 

 
6.2 The areas identified in the Cwm Taf strategy are (Currently under review): 
 

Aim 1:  Identifying Carers of all ages and recognising their contributions. 
 

Aim 2:  Providing up to date, relevant and timely information, advice & assistance to 
Carers of all ages. 

 

Aim 3:  Providing support, services & training to meet the needs of Carers of all 
ages. 

 
Aim 4:  Giving Carers of all ages a voice, with more choice & control over their lives. 

 
Aim 5:  Working together to make the most of our resources for the benefit of Carers 
of all ages. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 To support this, we will continue to engage with carers.  

Page 11



7.2 In support of this within Merthyr Tydfil we are undertaking the following: 
 

 Evaluated our carer support contracts and retender to meet the needs of carers 
we have coproduced with.  

 Increase the number of virtual and face to face groups for unpaid carers 

 Identify more carers within the Local Authority and recognising their contributions.  

 Identify cares that wish to be a part of a lived experience group to bring their view 
and the views of other carers that will be filtered to LA’s head of services.  

 Provide relevant up to date information for carers in a timely manner.  

 Implement training and learning opportunities for carers to upskill themselves 
whilst in their caring role. 

 Facilitate carer wellbeing days  

 Raise awareness of unpaid carers  

 Provide innovative respite for unpaid carers.  

 Ensure that all parent carers whose children have support needs identified by the 
Children with Disabilities Team have the opportunity to access the WG grant in 
order to access an activity that provides them with a break from care of their 
choice 

 Engage in updating of the regional carers’ strategy 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 The work we are undertaking around carers links with the Living Well wellbeing 

objective. 
 
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR TONY ROGERS 
                CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 12



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 
Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Vale, Valleys and Cardiff (VVC) Adoption 
Collaborative Annual Report for 1st April 2020 to 
31st March 2021 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The VVC Adoption Annual Report, which is attached at Appendix 1, provides 

information about the business of the Regional Adoption Service during 2020-21.  
  
2.0  RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive this report and to raise questions and 

challenge leading to improvement. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Vale, Valleys and Cardiff Adoption Collaborative (VVC) is the largest of the five 

regional collaboratives.  The Vale, Valleys and Cardiff Adoption Collaborative (VVC), 
as part of the National Adoption Service in Wales (NAS) was established on 1st June 
2015.  It provides a regional adoption service to the Vale of Glamorgan Council, 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Cardiff Council and Rhondda Cynon Taf 
County Borough Council.  The service is hosted by the Vale of Glamorgan Council. 

 
 
 

Date Written March 2022 

Report Author Taryn Stephens 

Service Area Children’s Services 

Committee Date 29th March 2022 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



3.2 The Regional Adoption Management Board meets monthly and receives updates in 
relation to the work of the business plan, performance reporting, budget and other 
challenges and developments.  The Portfolio Councillor for Social Services is a 
member of the Regional Adoption Committee that meets bi-annually and approves 
the budget for the Regional Adoption Collaborative. 

 
3.3 The service functions include: 
 

 Recruitment and Assessment of Adopters. 

 Adoption Panel.  

 Family Finding. 

 Adoption Support. 

 Transitions and Life Journey Work support. 
 
3.4 This is VVC’s sixth annual report and covers the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 

2021.  The Collaborative is required to review the service it provides by regulation, 
and as part of the reporting requirements set out in the legal agreement 
underpinning the operation of the collaborative.  The Report seeks to combine the 
various reporting requirements in one report.  

 
3.5 The report provides: 

 information in respect of the governance; 

 information on areas of service development; 

 performance information relating to the placement of children for adoption, 
recruitment and assessment of adopters; 

 the provision of adoption support services; 

 an overview on the impact of COVID 19 on service delivery and how the service 
adapted to respond to these challenges; 

 highlights key challenges and future priorities for the service in terms of 
maintaining core business but also embracing changes being brought about at a 
national level with the implementation of Good Practice Guides and the two stage 
model of adopter assessment; and 

 The appendices to the report provide data in respect of key performance 
measures in respect of children, marketing activity, adopter recruitment, adoption 
support and the Adoption Panel. It also highlights activity in respect of the new 
grant funded posts. This information is broken down by local authority. 

 
3.6 A bi-annual report has also been provided by the VVC which covers Quarters 1 and 

2 of 2021/2022 (attached as Appendix 2).  Whilst the primary report is the VVC’s 
annual report, Children’s Services and the VVC are mindful of ensuring that Scrutiny 
Committee have timely information so have included the bi-annual report. 

 
3.7 The report is attached at Appendix 1 with data appendices 2-5 also included as 

follows: 

 Appendix 1.1 Family Finding Data 

 Appendix 1.2 Recruitment and Assessment Data 

 Appendix 1.3 Adoption Support Data 

 Appendix 1.4 Adoption Panel Data 
 

Page 14



 
 

4.0 NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1 Merthyr Tydfil Children’s Services will continue to support the developing work of the 

Regional Adoption Collaborative in pursuit of ensuring successful permanent 
outcomes for younger looked after children with a plan for adoption.  

 
5.0  CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

5.1 This report specifically links to the Living Well objective within the Council’s 
Corporate Wellbeing Plan:  People are empowered to live independently within their 
Communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR TONY RODGERS  
CABINET MEMBER FOR                

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

October 2021  

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  

No 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 1 

Appendix 1 

                         

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

VALE, VALLEYS AND CARDIFF ADOPTION COLLABORATIVE 

REVIEW OF SERVICE AND 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

For Period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

 

 

 

 

NATIONAL ADOPTION SERVICE 

 

Achieving More Together / 
Cyflawni Mwy Gyda’n Gilydd 

 
           
 
 

Page 17



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Index 

Subjects          Page 

1.   Introduction ..........................................................................................  

2.    Background ..........................................................................................  

3. Service Development and Governance ...............................................  

4.    Staffing .................................................................................................  

5.    Children  ..............................................................................................  

6 Disruptions and Breakdowns  ..............................................................  

7.    Advertising and Marketing ...................................................................  

8.  Adopters  .............................................................................................  

9.  Adoption Panel ....................................................................................  

10.  Adoption Support .................................................................................  

11.  Policies and Procedures ......................................................................  

12. CIW ......................................................................................................  

13.  Consultation, Engagement and Quality Assurance ..............................  

14.  Complaints, Comments and Compliments ...........................................  

15. Conclusion, Future Priorities and Challenges ......................................  

 

 

 

  

Page 18



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 3 

Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service 

Review of Service Report 

1 April 2020 – 31 March 2021 

 
1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The requirement to provide six monthly reviews of the adoption service is set 

out in Regulation 39 of The Local Authority Adoption Services (Wales) 

Regulations 2019.  The aim of this report is to bring into one document a 

presentation and analysis of the activity of each of the local authority adoption 

agencies, operating as a regional service.  

 

1.2 The report will be used for: 

 The Review of Service (Regulation 39 report). 

 Annual reporting requirements to Cabinet/Scrutiny Committees as per the 

governance arrangements set out in Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Legal 

Agreement. 

 

1.3 This is VVC’s sixth annual report and covers the period 1 April 2020 to 31 

March 2021. Every effort has been made to ensure that the information 

presented is an accurate record of the activity and quality of the adoption 

service.   

            The report has the following Appendices: 

 Appendix 1 sets out key performance data in respect of children by 

quarter and local authority. 

 Appendix 2 provides information in respect of adopter enquiries and 

recruitment of adopters. 

 Appendix 3 provides information in respect of Adoption Support. 

 Appendix 4 provides information in respect of Adoption Panel activity. 

 

2. Background 

 

2.1 Vale, Valleys and Cardiff Adoption Collaborative (VVC), as part of the National 

Adoption Service in Wales (NAS) was established on 1 June 2015.  It 

provides a regional adoption service to the Vale of Glamorgan Council, 

Page 19



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 4 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Cardiff Council and Rhondda Cynon 

Taff County Borough Council. The Vale of Glamorgan hosts the service. 

 

2.2 The governance structure for the Collaborative is set out in a Legal 

Agreement agreed in 2015 and amended in 2019. 

 

2.3 The organisational and managerial structure of the service has remained 

unchanged since its’ original inception although the staffing establishment has 

grown. Service delivery continues to be structured around three functional 

teams with a separate Business Support Team. 

 

3. Service Development and Governance 

 

3.1 The context for the delivery of our service during this reporting period has 

been the restrictions imposed due to COVID-19 and the impact this has had 

upon VVC’s performance.  In late March 2020, our office closed, and staff 

began remote working from home. This has largely remained the position 

since this time.  As with other services, staff were required to adapt quickly 

and a new infrastructure to promote virtual working was developed. Due to the 

geographical spread of the region, staff within VVC had already been used to 

a pattern of agile working and so the new way of working did not pose too 

many challenges.  Early on we identified those core tasks which required an 

element of office working and arrangements were made for one of the 

Business Support team to attend the office two days per week to deal with 

basic administrative functions. The office space was also risk assessed to 

allow a small number of staff to utilise the office space on a restricted basis to 

carry out specific functions and to improve overall work life balance. 

 

3.2 The National Adoption Service facilitated regular Regional Manager/ VAA 

meetings to monitor the impact of the pandemic upon services and to develop 

consistent approaches to key areas of service. This provided an opportunity to 

raise key issues affecting the service and which required a standardised 

approach. In addition, the Regional Manager attended Vale of Glamorgan 

Page 20



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 5 

Divisional Manager Meetings to address issues at a local level and monitor 

progress. 

 

3.3 In line with Welsh Government advice several risk assessment processes 

were developed locally and nationally. NAS developed a Transitions Risk 

Assessment for authorisation by the respective Head of Service and Regional 

Manager to ensure a safe transition of children into adoptive placements. 

 

3.4 NAS also in conjunction with Medical Advisers and regional services 

developed a protocol to reduce the delays in adopter medicals being 

undertaken. 

 

3.5 On 1 April 2020, the two-stage process for the assessment of adopters came 

into force.  Welsh Government allowed an easement to the Regulations to 

allow both stage 1 and 2 to run concurrently. VVC contributed to the 

development of a piece of national guidance to assist agencies in 

implementing the new process. The easement to the Regulations has 

continued but full implementation will take place from 1 October 2021. 

 

3.6 The Recruitment & Assessment Manager within VVC developed a risk 

assessment process to enable part face to face and part virtual assessment 

sessions for prospective adopters to be undertaken which was adopted on a 

national level. 

 

3.7 During the year, the National Adoption Service commissioned AFA Cymru to 

develop a Series of Good Practice Guides covering Adoption Support, 

Transitions, Contact and Working with Birth Parents. These guides were 

formally launched in the autumn of 2020 and regional training for managers 

and staff across the region was provided in the last quarter of the year. These 

guides will have a significant impact upon practice and will impact upon the 

resources needed to support their full implementation later this year. 

 

3.8 In April 2019, as part of the Welsh Government award of £2.3M to improve 

adoption services in Wales, the region received a substantial investment of 

Page 21



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 6 

new monies which enabled a number of new posts to be recruited across the 

service. The grant was allocated to national and regional services to support 

key priorities for improvement. As a result of these monies VVC was able to 

recruit two full time Social Workers to specialise in Transitions and Life 

Journey Work and a part time Social Worker to support birth parents.  

 

3.9 The service was also able to recruit two new unqualified posts, a Children & 

Young People Co-ordinator to support adopted children and young people 

and a TESSA (Therapeutic Education Support Service in Adoption) Co-

ordinator to support adoptive families. Both posts are linked to national 

programmes being delivered by Adoption UK; the Connected service which 

supports young adoptees and the TESSA programme which supports 

adoptive families. 

 

3.10 In addition to the posts located within the Collaborative, 10.5 practitioner posts 

were created from the grant to support the provision of life journey work for 

children with a plan of adoption. These posts are distributed across the four 

partner authorities and link to the Life Journey Co-ordinator within VVC. 

 

3.11 As part of the deployment of the grant a national Implementation Plan was   

developed requiring reports to be submitted monitoring the spend against the 

grant and detailing areas of improvement in performance in service provision. 

The National Adoption Service prepared the bid for the grant in 2020-1 and 

took over the monitoring function in conjunction with Welsh Government 

requiring regions to report upon progress to NAS. The Regional Adoption 

Manager completed the monitoring reports against the grant in October 2020 

& March 2021 to enable the full allocation to be awarded to the region. 

 

3.12 VVC’s Management Board has continued to meet on a quarterly basis during 

the year although meetings are held virtually. The composition of the Board 

has remained the same although a representative from NAS now attends 

meetings to improve links between the national and local agenda. The 

Director of Social Services took over as chair of the Board in October 2020. 

 

Page 22



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 7 

3.13 The overall remit and accountability of the Management Board is prescribed 

within regulation and the Legal Agreement underpinning the Collaborative. 

VVC’s Management Board has continued to play a key role in monitoring the 

performance and business plan of the regional service highlighting areas for 

improvement. 

 

3.14 The second tier of governance within the Collaborative is via the Operational 

Group which is comprised of senior managers from each of the four local 

authorities and regional managers from VVC. This group has also met on a 

quarterly basis during the year , although competing priorities within local 

authorities has impacted upon quoracy of some meetings which has required 

a mechanism to be put in place to agree matters discussed outside the formal  

meeting. The Operational Group provides a further mechanism for monitoring 

the performance of the region and is a vehicle for raising standards and 

improving practice consistency across the region. 

 

3.15 The overall governance of the region remains via a Joint Committee which 

meets twice a year comprised of lead Members from each of the four 

authorities. It is chaired by the Cabinet Member for the Vale of Glamorgan. 

Meetings were held in May and December 2020 as per requirements to 

approve the annual accounts, the annual budget and annual plan for the 

Collaborative. 

 

3.16 Following a review of NAS’ governance structure by IPC, a National 

Partnership Agreement was developed by NAS for sign up by each of local 

authority in Wales. This Agreement lays out the national and local 

requirements in terms of governance. The recommended local governance 

structure for regional services outlined in the Agreement is modelled upon 

VVC’s. The Partnership Agreement was signed off by the four partner 

authorities during November and December 2020. 

 

3.17 The budget for the Collaborative is managed by the Vale of Glamorgan and is 

monitored closely by the Management Board and Joint Committee. The end 

of year position reported a small underspend in the budget for 2020 -21 

Page 23



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 8 

created partly by revised working methods and some staff turnover. A 

proposal to retain the underspend within VVC has been agreed by 

Management Board and Joint Committee. These monies will be held over to 

provide the regional contribution to the TESSA programme. 

 

3.18 VVC ‘s financial and governance arrangements are subject to an annual audit 

by Bridgend and Vale Internal Audit Shared Service. This audit was 

conducted remotely at the end of the reporting period and concluded that the 

“generally there was a sound system of governance, risk management and 

control in place but two areas of improvement were noted”. These areas 

related to revision of the WASPI Agreement and the audit trail of a couple of 

invoices which have now been addressed. 

 

3.19 VVC is required to report to the National Adoption Service on a range of 

performance measures which are collected on a quarterly and annual basis 

under the NAS Performance Framework. Due to the pandemic a shortened 

list of indicators was agreed for submission and uploading to the Data Cymru 

database. VVC continued however to collate data against the full range of 

measures to enable fuller reporting upon performance at a regional level. 

  

  

Page 24



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 9 

 

4. Staffing  

 

4.1 The overall staff establishment has remained unchanged during the 

period..Two permanent vacancies arose during the year, a part time Social 

Worker in the Adoption Support Team and part time Birth Parent Adviser  

They were filled on a temporary basis until they were successfully recruited to 

in December 2020. 

 

4.2 A temporary vacancy in the Recruitment & Assessment Team due to 

maternity leave has been covered by a part time member of staff taking on 

additional hours. 

 

4.3 Temporary arrangements to cover a vacancy within our Business Support 

Team have continued whilst a review of the structure is being undertaken. 

 

4.4 A staff repurposing exercise undertaken at the beginning of the pandemic 

resulted in two staff being redeployed on a short-term basis to Adult Services. 

 

5. Children 

 

5.1 Family Finding and its’ associated activities remains a key area of activity for 

the region and the ability to place children effectively and promptly underpins 

all other activities.  

 

5.2 The number of children referred for adoption totalled 171 in the year which 

marks a 20% increase on the previous year. This follows a previously 

sustained reduction in referral rates. It is unknown at this time to what extent 

the pandemic has impacted upon referrals to adoption; however, we note the 

rise in referrals in relation to the workload within the region, albeit not as high 

as observed pre-2019.  

 

5.3 The rates of our referrals which were withdrawn remained steady at 43% of 

those referred in 2020-21. This can be seen as a positive as alternative care 

Page 25



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 10 

plans for these children meant a vast majority of these either returning to 

parents’ care or being placed with Connected Persons following positive 

assessment. Withdrawn referrals, in many instances however do not equate 

to a decrease in workload for the service as a lot of work and staff capacity is 

invested in progressing the adoption plan prior to it being discontinued. 

 

5.4 The number of ‘Should be Adopted’ decisions made in respect of children has 

remained steady at 81 (up from 80 the previous year). If the number of 

referrals continues to increase, we would anticipate the number of SBA 

decisions also to increase. 

 

5.5 The region has recorded 62 Placement Orders being made within the year, a 

slight reduction from the 71 of the previous year and again but should be 

viewed in the context of reduction in referrals overall within the past couple of 

years. The reduction in Placement Orders is a trend seen in other parts of 

Wales although it is less noticeable within VVC. 

 

5.6 VVC placed 65 children for adoption during the year which is a considerable 

drop from the previous year but is however significant given the constraints 

upon the service. Alongside COVID restrictions, the other inhibiting factors 

were the reduction in Placement Orders and therefore a reduction in the 

number of children within the region requiring placement for adoption. The 

number of children placed was as a result of the service having to adapt 

quickly and respond to the challenges of bringing together different 

households for the purposes of transitioning a child from one placement to 

another. VVC utilised the NAS Transitions Risk Assessment and developed a 

process for this within the region to prevent delay in moving children on to 

adoption because of the pandemic. Transitions have included in most cases 

the use of self-isolation for both households and supplemented by the use of 

lateral flow testing where complete isolation couldt be maintained.  

 

5.7 One of the positive developments brought about by the pandemic has been 

the increased use of virtual communications between adopters and children 

prior to face-to-face introductions commencing. Whilst we have not used this 

Page 26



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 11 

to reduce the face-to-face time needed for children, it has enhanced the 

relationship building and familiarity between child, adopters and foster carers 

and the feedback from those involved has been overwhelmingly positive about 

the impact this has had on the overall introductions. This now forms part of all 

transitions plans for children moving into adoptive placements. 

 

5.8 The average time from Placement Order to placement has remained at a 

similar rate at 10.6 months. Some of the reasons for the delay includes some 

slightly delayed plans at the start of the pandemic until safe systems were in 

place to move children on and reflects some high outliers of children waiting a 

significantly higher period than others. It is positive however, that have seen 

an increasing number of placements for older, potentially harder to place 

children although the preparation and placement for adoption  in such cases 

may take longer to ensure this is taken at the child’s pace.  

 

5.9 VVC has continued to place a high proportion of our children with VVC 

approved adopters (68%) maintaining a similar level to the previous couple of 

years. 

 

5.10 At the end of the year there were 63 children on Placement Orders awaiting 

an adoptive match which is a reduction of 14% from the previous year. A 

further 5 children had a very strong link proceeding but not yet matched as at 

the end of March 2021 and so the number waiting was 48. It is positive to see 

a continued decrease in the number of children waiting for adoptive 

placements. 

 

5.11 There were 83 Adoption Orders granted during the year which is a continued 

pattern from previous years. There were no placements which disrupted 

during 2020-21 which is hugely encouraging. 

 

5.12 172 birth parents of children referred during 2020-21 were offered birth parent 

counselling and 35% took this up which is lower than in previous years. 

Opportunities to offer birth parent counselling virtually and via phone calls 

have been utilised during the pandemic , however lots of opportunities to 

Page 27



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 12 

provide this in person, usually following a direct contact session for parents 

with their children have not been possible for much of 2020-21 due to contact 

moving to virtual arrangements during the strictest lockdown measures. 

Following the easing of restrictions we have offered parents a range of 

options: in-person, virtual or telephone according to their individual 

circumstances. 

 

5.13 Performance in relation to the provision of Life Journey Material for children 

being placed for adoption has improved considerably and at the point of 

matching this was 100% by the end of Q4. Overall, for the year this was 83% 

but with a quarter-on-quarter increase. The provision of finalised materials at 

2nd adoption review has increased from 60% in 2019-20 to 84% in 2020-21 

however again we saw this increase to 100% in Q4. 

 

5.14 The increase in performance can clearly be linked to the additional Welsh 

Government funding which has provided the region with a Life Journey Work 

Co-Ordinator and Life Journey Work Practitioners based within the local 

authorities. 

 

5.15 The Life Journey Work Co-ordinator offers regular support, advice, and 

guidance to the Practitioners and in addition has offered workshops/briefings 

to local authority teams and was integral in the recruitment panels for the 

Practitioner posts. There are regular meetings established now between the 

Practitioners and the Co-ordinator supports the allocation process and 

monitoring of performance across the region.  

 

5.16 Our Transitions Worker post has become integral to the service we offer and 

to our ability to provide an enhanced level of support to children moving on to 

adoption. Over 2020-21 the Transitions Worker has supported 46 children 

with direct transitions work. This includes ongoing post-placement support for 

children who were placed in 2019-20 and 26 new referrals for direct work in 

2020-21. This means that 40% of our children being placed for adoption were 

in receipt of this service which is aimed at children over the age of 3 years. In 

context, 55% of our children placed were under the age of 2. The Transitions 

Page 28



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 13 

Worker accepted referrals for some children aged 2+ where it was considered 

appropriate to work directly with them. Understanding the Child Meetings were 

held in respect of 20 children during 2020-21 along with the completion of 

Trauma/Nurture timelines for these children. There were an additional 2 

families who were having a sibling placed with them where the Transitions 

Worker supported the children already within the family to manage the 

transition. The Transitions Worker has also led training for foster carers on 

moving children on to adoption and assisted in the delivery of training for 2nd 

time adopters. 

  

5.17 VVC has continued to embrace the use of all available family finding 

methods over this year. The team liaises closely with the Adoption Register 

Wales (ARW)/LinkMaker team to ensure information is updated and 

monitored in a timely manner. The service delivered a virtual regional 

profiling event for 18 adopters and 17 children where 6 potential links were 

identified and are working with NAS to run a further event. VVC has not been 

able to access a Welsh Adoption Activity Day as these have not run in 

person due to the pandemic however some available spaces have been 

utilised at other events run in England on . A Welsh Activity Day is planned 

for later this year.  

 

6. Disruptions and Breakdowns  

 

6.1 There were no placement disruptions during the year. 

 

7. Advertising and Marketing 

 

7.1 VVC’s Marketing and Recruitment Strategy has continued to focus on raising 

the profile of the service and helping the public see the Collaborative as very 

much their first choice when they are exploring adoption. The Recruitment 

and Marketing Officer’s role is crucial in creating a flexible and relevant 

approach. Our Marketing Officer ensures our Strategy continues to be 

influenced by the National Adoption Service ‘s Strategy and she has 

Page 29



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 14 

developed links with her counterparts in other regions to ensure there is 

cohesive approach.  

 

7.2 The Marketing Officer has also continued to work closely with Cowshed, the 

marketing company commissioned by NAS to develop the national strategy 

and to support regional activity. VVC is recognised by the national team as 

being an active contributor when it comes to adopters who can share their 

lived experience of adoption during media events and campaigns. Four VVC 

adopters contributed to a podcast during National Adoption Week and a 

webinar. A single male adopter from VVC participated in a BBC feature on 

single male adopters. 

 

7.3 Previously formed links with local Comms Departments across the region 

continue to be useful resources as they ensure adoption features as part of 

their local advertising particularly during such events as National Adoption 

Week. 

 

7.4 In the previous year, the Collaborative had been proactive in having a 

physical presence at a variety of community events e.g., National Eisteddfod 

Cardiff Pride, the Vale of Glamorgan’s Agricultural Show and we had engaged 

with different faith organisations, all activities to raise the profile of the region. 

COVID-19 meant however that these face-to-face events were cancelled and 

so the service had quickly to adapt to alternative mechanisms and to further 

develop our social media presence. VVC specifically uses pay-per-click (PPC) 

advertising on Facebook and Instagram. This approach has been cost 

effective as it allows us to target specific geographical locations and provides 

us with a rich pool of information about the profile of those engaging with our 

posts. 

 

7.5 In addition to using our social media platforms, the service decided to trial 

including information about the Collaborative in council tax notifications within 

the areas of Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of Glamorgan. 

Unfortunately, Cardiff Council were unable to provide the service. During the 

weeks after these inserts were delivered, the service experienced a sustained 

Page 30



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 15 

increase in the number of visits to our website and in enquiries received. As a 

service we capture feedback from any enquirer to ascertain where they learn 

about us and positively many people referred to receiving information within 

the council tax letter. 

 

7.6 Moving forward in 2021/22, it is our intention to repeat this approach with all 

four of our local authority areas, in addition to continuing our PPC advertising. 

 

8. Adopters 

 

8.1 As outlined above, our continued marketing activity has had a specific goal to 

increase the number of enquiries the agency receives. 2020/21 saw a 

significant and sustained increase in the number of enquiries – 374 in total 

compared to 336 received during 2019/20. This is a pleasing outcome and our 

ability to provide a professional and structured approach to receiving, 

recording, and tracking enquiries has led to this important increase in 

performance. The national marketing work in conjunction with the well-

established regional input is also having a positive impact in providing a 

consistent and coherent message to the wider public. 

 

8.2 2020/21 saw the Collaborative hosting seven Information Evenings for 

prospective applicants. These events were delivered remotely but were well 

attended and feedback received has continued to be positive. 

 

8.3 VVC’s three day ‘Preparation to Adopt’ training course continued to be 

provided by an Independent Social Worker during the period but again this 

had to be quickly adapted to a virtual means of delivery. In preparation for the 

implementation of the two-stage process of adopter assessment and to avoid 

delay, the frequency of our training was increased in the latter part of the year.  

Since January 2021, our preparation training has been delivered jointly with 

Western Bay region which has allowed us to increase the number of training 

courses from six a year to 10 per year without any increase to overall costs as 

trainer’s fees are shared equally with Western Bay. 

 

Page 31



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 16 

8.4 With the recent retirement of our independent trainer, the service has used 

this as an opportunity to redevelop the training content and from October 

2021 the frequency of the training will increase further to 11 preparation 

training courses a year. These will now be delivered by an experienced 

member of the VVC Recruitment & Assessment Team and an experienced 

member of the Western Bay Post Adoption Support Team. 

 

8.5 Questionnaires have been developed by the Vale of Glamorgan’s 

Participation Officer and are distributed at the end of training to gather views 

of the process from enquiry through to training. These questionnaires are 

collated and the feedback in respect of the training from received has been 

continued to be positive. 

 

8.6 71 households attended the courses. Out of those 71 households three did 

not go onto submit applications to progress onwards to an assessment. These 

potential applicants have been followed up. All three households feedback  

that they wished to take more time to consider their future plans. 

 

8.7 During 2020/21 a total of 67 adopter approvals were presented to VVC’s 

Adoption Panel and positive recommendations were made. 66 of these 

approvals were ratified within the reporting year. The approvals are broken 

down as follows: Cardiff – 26, Merthyr Tydfil – 4, RCT – 17, and Vale of 

Glamorgan – 19 (included in the Vale of Glamorgan figures are 

approvals for four adopters outside of our area (2 - Newport, 1 - 

Caerphilly and Powys - 1). This represents a small decrease to the previous 

year but against the background of the challenging COVID-19 environment, 

this performance is a pleasing result. 

 

8.8 Out of the 66 ratified approvals achieved in 2020/21, 9 were foster carers 

assessed to adopt a specific child, 6 were second time adopters and 51 were 

first time adopters. 

 

8.9 The majority of the applicants approved during 2020/21 have gone onto be 

matched with children from within VVC. Four have had a child placed from 

Page 32



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 17 

outside of our region: two from SEWAS region, one from Scotland and one 

from Devon. A further two are in the matching process of adopting non VVC 

children  

 

9. Adoption Panel 

 

9.1 VVC continues to manage a central list of Adoption Panel members. In terms 

of practical delivery, VVC typically holds four Panel sittings a month. Again, 

the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in Panel sittings being delivered remotely 

which in many respects has proved more efficient,  especially in reducing 

travel time etc.  

 

9.2 Panel membership has seen several changes during the year with the 

retirement of one of our independent Chairs just prior to the pandemic and 

then one of our Vice Chairs, leaving just one Chair & two Vice Chairs to 

maintain all Panel meetings. As the year progressed, our one remaining 

independent Chair also stepped down and one of the Vice Chairs with the 

result that an expression of interest was sent out to members in respect of the 

vacant positions. As a result of this process our one remaining Vice Chair was 

successful in being appointed as Chair alongside one of our independent 

members. Our new Chairs have demonstrated flexibility in being able to cover 

each other where required and in supporting the ever-increasing Panel 

workload. There is however a need to recruit a new Vice Chair. 

 

9.3 Also, during the past year, VVC has been proactive in recruiting several new 

Panel members, with a particular focus upon increasing representation of 

adoptive parents and adopted people. There is an ongoing need to increase 

our Social Worker membership from our partner authorities whilst recognising 

that workload constraints often prohibit this. 

 

9.4 During the past year the importance of understanding diversity and 

unconscious bias has been recognised as an important are of development 

for Panel members with the result that NAS provided training for all Panel 

Page 33



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 18 

members across Wales on this topic. This training explored a range of 

equality and diversity issues and was attended by 23 members of VVC Panel.  

 

9.5 Our Panel Chairs have also benefitted from participating in several information 

sessions and training events linked to the launch of the National Adoption 

Services Good Practice Guides.  

 

9.6 During 2020/21 42 Adoption Panel meetings were held. The workload of the 

Panel is outlined in Appendix 4. 

 

10. Adoption Support 

 

10.1 Referrals into the service for post adoption support services dipped in the first 

quarter of the year but then increased during the second quarter and have 

continued to rise. This increase is in line with the previous reporting year and 

reflects the focus from the NAS on improving awareness of support services 

for adoptive families. 92 referrals were received during the year which has 

created a backlog of unallocated work and a waiting list. When compared to 

previous years, the service has observed a 20% increase in the number of 

referrals received over the past three years. 

  

10.2 The increased focus on adoption support services at a national and local level 

has in turn enabled adopters to request earlier services following the making 

of Adoption Order. It is anticipated that this will increase as with the 

implementation of the Good Practice Guides which emphasise earlier 

involvement of the Adoption Support Service in planning for the child and 

maintaining contact with the adoptive family post Adoption Order.  

 

10.3 Referrals for Access to Birth Records for adopted adults have also seen a rise 

this year with a total of 68 referrals. There has also been a rise in request for 

information under the Post Commencement Regulations 2005 as a number of 

those enquirers have reached 18 years of age. 31 referrals for Intermediary 

Services have also been received. COVID restrictions have impacted to some 

Page 34



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 19 

extent on our ability to access paper records as offices have been closed 

which has also contributed to our waiting list. 

 

10.4 VVC does not manage a budget for the provision of adoption support services 

although undertakes assessments of support needs which may recommend an 

adoption support package to the respective authority where the adoptive family 

resides. The budgets to support such provision is held in the respective local 

authority. The total expenditure on adoption support services for the reporting 

year was £167.550.50 which covers 64 children. The average spent per child 

has increased to £2618 per child, although this only represents 24 % of children 

who are being supported by the team. The emphasis of the service has been 

to continue to develop the skills of practitioners within the Adoption Support 

Team to be able to manage families by way of inhouse support without the need 

to rely on external input.  

 

10.5 The Adoption Support Team embraced the constraints imposed by the 

pandemic and developed a range of virtual support mechanisms for families. 

The monthly Toddler Group was facilitated remotely until the easing of 

restrictions allowed some outside gatherings. A quiz for adoptive families was 

also developed. The team also facilitated a Nurturing and Attachment Course  

and two courses on Non-Violent Resistance (NVR) remotely. A support group 

established following the NVR training has also been run remotely. The 

mechanisms put in place have been well received and take up has increased 

as families have found ,in most instances, it easier to engage with virtual 

platforms of delivery. 

 

10.6 ICF funds within Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan has been utilised to 

commission a Psychology Service, Enfys which includes support for adopted 

children. The Adoption Support Team can refer a small number of cases and 

the service provides consultation and peer supervision for staff within the 

team undertaking direct work with families.  

 

10.7 The Birth Parent Adviser’s role post has become more established within the 

service despite the change in the postholder . A referral process and 

Page 35



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 20 

information leaflet for Social Work colleagues across the region and an 

information leaflet for birth parents has been disseminated with the aim of 

promoting the service and increasing support to birth parents. A birth parent 

group has been developed and is been delivered on a hybrid basis (part 

virtual and part face to face) to enable a wider reach and to meet differing 

needs. 35 referrals for individual birth parent support have been received and 

supported.  

 

10.8 The TESSA Co-ordinator’s role has also been further established within the 

region during this period. The Co-ordinator undertakes assessments of need 

and processes referrals of families who may be eligible for the service .41 

referrals have been made to TESSA by VVC during the year which is the 

highest in Wales. The TESSA Parenting group was unable to run due to 

COVID restrictions and so these families were redirected to one of the training 

courses being provided by VVC.  

 

10.9 Since being established the Children and Young People Co-ordinator has 

been directly involved in running Connected groups on a Saturday each 

month with staff from the Connected service. During lockdown the frequency 

of these groups increased to fortnightly on a virtual basis which the Co-

ordinator continued to service. The service caters for adopted children and 

young people 7 upwards, 59 children and young people from VVC are 

registered with the service. In addition, the postholder has provided direct 

support sessions to 17 children from the region and has also supported 8 

direct contact sessions for adopted children, which can be as frequent as 3 

times a year and can also include separate sibling contact.  

 

10.10 There is a need to continue to collect data from the Evaluation forms that have 

been developed. The main objective is to ascertain the benefits of the service 

provided and the needs within families which may not have been addressed. It 

is however hoped going forward that the findings can be collated in a more 

systematic way to enable the feedback to be used constructively to improve 

service delivery.  

  

Page 36



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 21 

 

11. Policies and Procedures 

 

11.1 The first six years of operation has seen great strides in delivering a service 

that meets objectives set both locally and nationally.  Whilst there have been 

numerous examples of regionalising the paperwork, processes and systems, 

the development of general policies has been limited due to capacity.  

 

11.2 The need to address gaps in our policy framework and to standardise 

processes has been acknowledged across regions. NAS have therefore 

commissioned Practice Solutions to develop a common set of policies and 

procedures and VVC has contributed to the initial audit undertaken to scope 

the work involved. 

 

12. CIW 

12.1 The service has not been inspected by CIW. 

 

13. Consultation, Engagement & Quality Assurance 

 

13.1 During 2020-21 VVC has developed a range of consultation and feedback 

tools at various points for all functions with the overall aim of improving our 

service user engagement and to develop our quality assurance system. 

Additionally, the evaluations undertaken have enabled us to ascertain the 

benefits of the service provided and identify needs which may not have been 

addressed. It is however hoped going forward that the findings can be collated 

in a more systematic way to enable the feedback to be used constructively to 

improve service delivery. In addition, VVC adopters contributed to Adoption 

UK Barometer Study and IPC’s review of the Adoption Support Framework 

commissioned by NAS. 

 

14 Complaints, Comments and Compliments 

 

14.1 There was one complaint received during the reporting period: 

 

Page 37



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 22 

14.2 Complaint from a birth parent concerning the role undertaken by the Family 

Finding Social Worker and the delay in receiving her post adoption letter from 

the adoptive parents. This complaint was investigated by the Regional 

Manager under stage 1 of the Vale of Glamorgan Complaint Procedure. 

 

14.3 Regional staff have continued to receive positive feedback on the range of 

services they provide from a variety of sources. These compliments are 

recorded, and staff are encouraged to collate this information to contribute to 

their own personal development plans. The new services established because 

of the investment, particularly the role of the Transitions Worker, have been 

particularly well received. 

 

15. Conclusion, Future Priorities & Challenges 

 

15.1 In terms of key performance indicators the end of year position presented a 

much healthier position than was anticipated at the beginning of the reporting 

year. Despite the restrictions imposed upon service delivery, the region was 

successful in placing a significant number of children and in approving a 

comparable number of adopters to the previous year . The priorities going 

forward remain as in previous years. We need to continue to build upon our 

performance and ensure that we can meet the range of needs  presented by 

children requiring adoptive placements  within the region . The increased 

complexity and profile of the harder to place children will continue to challenge 

our ability to secure timely, appropriate matches for these children. 

 

15.2 The report hopefully highlights the ways the service quickly adapted to the 

need to develop new ways of working to reduce the impact upon service 

delivery by the pandemic. The use of virtual platforms has been beneficial in 

many parts of our service and has enabled us to reach more families. Going 

forward there is a need to evaluate which functions can continue to be 

delivered in this way and which parts of the service will require a combined 

approach. This will continue to inform our recovery planning. 

 

Page 38



Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Service - Regulation 39 Regional Report Date 1 April 2020 -31 March 2021 
 
 

Annual Report 2020-21/AH/TK  Page | 23 

15.3  The investment received from Welsh Government has been a significant, 

positive development for the service as a whole and there is clear evidence of 

the benefits of the additional roles in enhancing performance . These 

improvements will however need to continue to be monitored and evaluated to 

meet the objectives and targets set by NAS.  This is particularly important in 

respect of the provision of life journey work due to the large amount of the 

investment secured for completion of this work.  

 

15.4 One of the key priorities for the service highlighted during the period and 

continuing into the current year is how best to address the ever-increasing 

demand for post adoption support services. The raised awareness of adoption 

support services at a national and local level can only be seen as positive for 

families in need of support but it has also highlighted the shortfalls within the 

service to meet these needs in a timely way. The investment monies have 

served to enhance the range of preventative services we can offer but they 

have not impacted significantly upon the services required for families in 

crisis. An urgent evaluation of the resources needed to support such families 

is required. 

 

15.5 The full implementation of the Good Practice Guides will impact directly upon 

our Family Finding practice and our Adoption Support Service, although the 

need to promote ongoing and in some cases direct contact with birth families 

will need to be factored into our assessment process for prospective adopters. 

Again, an evaluation of the resourcing implications in respect of the new ways 

of working promoted by the Guides will need to be undertaken. 

 

15.6 The easement to the Regulations in respect of the two-stage process for 

adopter assessments ceases on 30 September 2021 and the new process is 

to be fully implemented from 1 October 2021. VVC will need to collect data in 

respect of compliance with the new timescales for assessments and 

performance will need to be closely monitored. 

Angela Harris 

Regional Adoption Manager 

October 2021 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Family Finding 

Children Referrals 

171 children were referred to the service during the period April 2020 to March 2021.  On 

average 14 referrals were received monthly, with 36% and 35% of referrals received from 

Cardiff and RCT respectively.  18% of referrals were received from the Vale of Glamorgan 

and 11% from Merthyr Tydfil.    

 

 

Comparative Data 

Comparative data for 2018-19 and 2019-20 noted a 34% decrease in the number of referrals 

made to the service and was in line with national trends.  However, when 2020-21 data is 

compared with 2019-20, a 20% increase is noted. 

 

 

Total Q1 Total Q2 Total Q3 Total Q4

Cardiff 9 23 12 18

Merthyr 2 8 2 7

RCT 13 18 10 19

Vale 7 9 6 8

0

5

10

15

20

25

C
h
ild

re
n

Referrals - April 2020 to March 2021

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

2018-19 68 62 43 45

2019-20 45 27 39 32

2020-21 31 58 30 52

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

C
hi

ld
re

n

Referrals to Service - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 41



 

‘Should be Adopted’ 

81 SBA decisions were made during the period April 2021 to March 2021.  This is consistent 

with previous years. 

 

 

Comparative Data 

Comparative data demonstrates a 23.5% decrease of SBA decisions when compared to 

data held for 2018-19 and is consistent with national trends. 

 

 

  

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cardiff 4 2 2 0 0 5 1 2 7 5 4 3

Merthyr 0 0 0 2 0 3 0 2 1 0 0 1

RCT 3 0 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2

Vale 0 0 2 0 0 2 3 1 0 3 3 2

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

D
ec

is
io

n
s

Should Be Adopted Decisions - April 2021 to March 2021

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

2018-19 26 47 19 14

2019-20 27 19 19 15

2020-21 15 16 23 27

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

D
ec

is
io

n
s

Should be Adopted Decision - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 42



Placement Orders 

62 Placement Orders were granted in the first half year, which is 13% lower than the same 

period in previous year, however we are slowly seeing an increase in the number of Placement 

Orders being granted. The active family finding data monitored by Welsh Government shows 

53 children with a Placement Order who are yet not linked, matched, or placed and whose 

care plan remains one of adoption. This number of children ‘waiting’ has significantly reduced 

through a combination of increased adopter recruitment, utilisation of specialist family finding 

measures and the reduction in Placement Orders over the past two years.  

 

 

 

Comparative Data 

Comparative data indicates a marked decrease (33%) in Placement Orders granted during 

the period 2018-19 and 2019-20 which is indicative of national trends.   

 

 

 

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cardiff 4 1 2 1 0 0 1 2 1 6 4 2

Merthyr 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0

RCT 1 1 1 2 2 2 0 1 1 2 1 4

Vale 1 1 1 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 1 4

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

P
la

ce
m

en
t 

O
rd

er
s

Placement Orders Granted - April 2020 to March 2021

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Qtr 1 26 23 15

Qtr 2 41 16 10

Qtr 3 27 16 13

Qtr 4 9 14 24

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

O
rd

er
s

Placement Orders Granted - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 43



 

Children Placed 

65 children were placed between April 2020 and March 2021. Whilst there was an initial delay 

in being able to place children early on due to the coronavirus pandemic, there have been no 

ongoing delays because of this, and the transitions risk assessment process is enabling 

placements to continue.  

 

 

 

Comparative Data 

The number of children placed is lower than in previous years, in line with the overall 

reduction in the number of children requiring adoptive placements observed over the past 

two years. 

 

 

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cardiff 0 0 1 3 5 3 0 2 0 4 1 6

Merthyr 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 2 2 1 1 3

RCT 0 0 3 3 3 2 3 0 1 2 2 1

Vale 0 0 0 2 0 1 1 0 2 1 1 0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

C
hi

ld
re

n

Children Placed - April 2020 to March 2021

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Qtr 1 20 24 6

Qtr 2 22 26 23

Qtr 3 26 27 13

Qtr 4 32 23 23

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

C
h

ild
re

n

Children Placed - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 44



Adoption Orders 

83 Adoption Orders were granted in the reporting period. There has been a significant 

increase from the first two quarters to the end of quarter 4 in line with an increasing number 

of final adoption order hearings which have been able to take place following the initial 

delays earlier in the pandemic.  

 

 

Comparative Data 

Adoption Orders granted during 2020-21 are comparable with data held for 2018-19.  A 

slight decrease (16%) in Adoption Orders granted was noted in 2019-20. 

 

 

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cardiff 6 2 2 1 3 1 5 7 2 0 4 4

Merthyr 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 2 0

RCT 0 0 0 1 3 0 3 3 0 9 3 4

Vale 2 1 0 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 3 0

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

A
do

pt
io

n 
O

rd
er

s

Adoption Orders Granted - April 2020 to March 2021

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

2018-19 29 22 11 21

2019-20 12 23 17 14

2020-21 14 13 27 29

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

O
rd

er
s

Adoption Orders Granted - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 45



Children Matched 

77 children were matched to adopters during the reporting period.  This figure is 22.22% 

lower when compared to the same period in previous year. 

 

 

Comparative Data 

The service continues to consistently match children.  It should be noted however, children 

placed in 2020-21 is 21% lower when compared to previous years. 

 

  

Cardiff Merthyr RCT Vale

Total Q1 4 2 5 3

Total Q2 11 1 8 3

Total Q3 5 3 5 2

Total Q4 14 4 5 2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

C
h

ild
re

n

Children Matched - April 2020 to March 2021

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Qtr 1 20 24 14

Qtr 2 26 25 23

Qtr 3 26 27 15

Qtr 4 25 23 25

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

C
hi

ld
re

n

Children Matched - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 46



Number of children Matched since April 2020 who have waited longer than 6 months 

(or 3 months for a relinquished child under 6 months of age) to progress from 

“Should be placed for Adoption” decision to approve to Match 

48 (73.84%) children matched in 2020-21 have waited longer than six months to progress 

from SBA to approve to match. This includes several children with additional/complex needs 

whose adoption searches have taken time but also whose matching with adopters has been 

drawn out over a longer period to ensure both that adopters have had sufficient time and 

information to proceed and that children have been able to be prepared. 

 

In many cases, children who have waited longer than six months come under more than one 

category. 

 

 

  

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cardiff 5 3 3 9

Merthyr 1 4 2 2

RCT 2 4 3 2

Vale 2 2 2 2

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

C
h

ild
re

n

Children who have waited longer than 6 months - April 2020 
to March 2021

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale

4+ 2 1 3 2

BME 7 0 1 0

Complex 4 3 2 3

Sibling 2 2 2 0

Other 12 5 6 5

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

C
h

ild
re

n

Reasons for Children waiting longer than 6 months

Page 47



Type of Placement 

68% of the children have been placed with VVC adopters 

 

 

Life Journey Work 

Amendments to the performance indicators for Life Journey work came into effect on 1st April 

2020. 

M20A The number of children during the quarter where life journey material has been 

provided by the time of matching panel.  Life Journey material at matching panel 

has been defined as: draft later life letter; and draft life storybook. 

M20 The number of children for whom life journey material has been provided to adopters 

by the time of the second adoption review.  

M21 The number of children during the quarter who had their second adoption review. 

Quarter on quarter we can see a steady increase in performance with most local 

authorities achieving 100% compliance. Given the relatively small numbers of children 

involved in both measures, just 1 child can show a significant impact on the overall %. 

 

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

Total

Via VAA

Single

Sibling Group of 3

Total Via LA Via VAA Via RAAE Single
Sibling

Group of
2

Sibling
Group of

3

Sibling
Group of

4

Wales - In Region 50 44 6 0 48 2 0 0

Wales - Outside Region 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

England 13 1 3 9 9 4 0 0

Scotland 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

Total 65 45 9 11 59 6 0 0

Children placed by location

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Panel % 14.29 66.67 93.33 100

2nd Review % 56.25 87.5 95.65 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

%
 

Life Journey material available at Panel and 2nd Review

Page 48



Appendix 2 

Recruitment and Assessment 

Initial Enquiries 

374 enquiries were received during the period April 2020 – March 2021.  Of this, 36% and 

28% of enquiries were received from Cardiff and RCT respectively, 17% and 7% of enquiries 

were received from the Vale of Glamorgan and Merthyr Tydfil respectively and 44 (12%) 

enquiries were received from outside our region.   

 

 

Comparative Data 

Over the past three years, the service has seen a 46% increase in the number of enquiries. 

 

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Cardiff 6 19 12 14 8 8 15 9 5 18 10 11

Merthyr 0 1 2 5 5 1 0 0 3 2 2 5

RCT 8 5 9 6 10 7 6 3 8 11 14 19

Vale 5 5 4 9 1 3 4 6 8 2 5 11

Other 4 3 3 1 7 5 4 3 5 2 0 7

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

E
nq

ui
rie

s

Initial Enquiries - April 2020 - March 2021

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Initial Enquiries - 4 Year Qtr 1 49 77 87

Initial Enquiries - 4 Year Qtr 2 64 83 92

Initial Enquiries - 4 Year Qtr 3 65 84 79

Initial Enquiries - 4 Year Qtr 4 80 92 119

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

E
nq

ui
ry

Initial Enquiries - April 2018 - March 2021

Page 49



Information Evenings  

Comparative Data 

Year on year, the service continues to see an increase in attendance at Information 

Evenings. 

 

 

Demographics of Initial Enquiries 

Self-disclosed Nationality 

 

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021

Year 77 107 109

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

Information Evening Attendance

2
1

200
1
1
1
1
2
2
1
1
6
2
1
3
1
2
1
1
1
2

0 50 100 150 200 250

American with ILR
American with ILR and citizenship

British
British (previously Italian)

Canadian (awaiting ILR)
Czech (with settled status)

Dual Australian and Irish
Dual British and Bangladesh

Dual British and Malta
Dual British and French

Dual Italian and Peruvian
English

Indian (with ILR)
French (with settled status)

Irish
Italian

Italian (with settled status)
Polish

Polish (with settled status)
Portuguese

Somalian

Self Disclosed Nationality 

Self Disclosed Nationality

Page 50



Self-disclosed ethnicity 

 

 

Self-disclosed Follow up - reasons for delay or withdrawal from adoption process 

before Information Evening April 2020 – March 2021: 

 

  

2

4

1

3

1

1

1

2

1

2

4

8

381

296

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450

Arab

Asian

Black

Black African

Black Caribbean

Black Jamaican

Dual Heritage: Hispanic and White

Mixed Heritage

South Asian

South Asian: Bangladesh

South Asian: Bengal

South Asian: Indian

Unknown

White

Self Disclosed Ethnicity

21 211
202 1122

51 9 121 311
211

11
2 81 1011

11
11
1 211
1 2532 411

711
61 211

211
11
11

181 31

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Drop out: Adoption doesn’t feel right for them

Drop out: Age of birth child and Smoking / E-cigs

Drop out: Different Agency: Mid and West Wales

Drop out: Different Agency: Unknown

Drop out: Enquiring for the future

Drop out: Housing considerations

Drop out: Length of relationship

Drop out: Loss of close family member

Drop Out: No spare room

Drop out: Wants to adopt a female Syrian refugee only

Drop out: Pregnant

Drop out: Smoking / E-cigs and Housing Considerations

Drop Out: VVC not considering

Wait: Age of birth child

Wait: Enquiring for the future

Wait: Fertility Treatment and getting married

Wait: Housing Considerations and Smoking / Ecigs

Wait: Lives abroad for part of the year

Wait: Moving to the UK

Wait: Plan to start process later in the year

Wait: Smoking / E-cigs and then didn’t attend nearest …

Page 51



Age of Applicants 

 

 

Relationship Status 

 

 

  

Civil Partnership
Cohabiting 

Engaged

In a relationship but 
not living together 

Married 

Single 

Page 52



How they contacted us 

 

 

 

Couples and Singles 

 

 

 

  

Email: Direct Email Email: NAS Submission Email: VVC Submission

Foster Carers Phone Sibling Placement

Through a Social Worker in team VVC Instagram Message

Couple Single

Page 53



Couples – self-reported LGBT+ and Heterosexual 

 

 

 

Self-reported faith 

 

 

  

Heterosexual LGBT+

Page 54



Adopting with children already in the household 

 

 

 

Languages spoken in the household 

 

 

 

1 adopted child

1 adopted child and 1 birth child

1 birth child

1 birth child and 1 deceased birth child

1 birth child and 1 foster child

1 foster child and 3 birth children

1 foster child, 1 adopted child, 2 birth children

2 adopted children

Page 55



Initial Visits 

82 initial visits took place during the reporting period. 

 

 

Comparative Data 

Over the past three years, the service has noted a 48% increase in the number of initial 

visits being carried out. 

 

 

 

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Cardiff 3 3 1 3 2 2 3 2 2 5 2

Merthyr 1 1 1 1 1

RCT 3 3 3 3 1 0 2 1 1 1 3

Vale 3 3 3 1 3 1 2 1 2 1

Other LA 1 1 2 1 3

Total 10 10 9 7 4 6 6 5 1 5 12 7

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

V
is

it
s

Initial Visits - April 2019 to March 2020

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Initial Visits  Qtr 1 13 29 31

Initial Visits  Qtr 2 12 17 21

Initial Visits  Qtr 3 14 13 19

Initial Visits  Qtr 4 24 24 22

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

V
is

its

Initial Visits - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 56



Adopter Assessments 

57 adopter assessments were carried out during the reporting period.   

 

 

Adopter Approvals 

67 adopter approvals were presented to the adoption panel, of these 66 adopter approvals 

were ratified during the reporting period. 

 

 

 

April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Cardiff 2 2 3 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 0

Merthyr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

RCT 4 3 4 0 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 0

Vale 3 4 3 1 1 1 3 2 0 0 1 1

Other LA 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 9 9 10 3 4 4 6 6 2 1 2 1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

A
ss

se
ss

m
en

ts

Adopter Assessments

April May June July August
Septem

ber
Octobe

r
Novem

ber
Decem

ber
January

Februar
y

March

Cardiff 4 0 0 1 0 2 3 7 4 0 1 4

Merthyr 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 1

RCT 1 1 1 2 0 1 0 2 4 1 0 4

Vale 2 2 0 0 1 2 1 2 3 2 1 3

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

A
do

pt
er

s

Adopters Approved - April 2020 - March 2021

Page 57



Comparative Data 

A 35% increase in the number of adopters approved has been observed during the three- 

year period. 

 

Conversions 

The Service continues to demonstrate its commitment to process applications within NAS 

guidelines. In respect of initial enquiry to approval (see graph below), the time scale was 

extended because 6 adopters’ assessments were protracted due to a variety of reasons. 

 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Qtr 1 10 13 11

Qtr 2 15 22 9

Qtr 3 12 19 29

Qtr 4 12 15 17

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

A
do

pt
er

s

Adopters Approved - April 2018 to March 2021

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

Enquiry to Initial Visit

Enquiry to Application

Initial Enquiry to Approval

Application to Approval

Enquiry to Initial Visit Enquiry to Application
Initial Enquiry to

Approval
Application to

Approval

Average (Months) 3 6 13 7

Time taken between Key Performance Indicators 

Page 58



 

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400 1600 1800 2000

Enquiry to Initial Visit

Enquiry to Application

Initial Enquiry to Approval

Application to Approval

Enquiry to Initial Visit Enquiry to Application
Initial Enquiry to

Approval
Application to Approval

Average 76.05 186.65 385.13 198.47

Longest 432 996 1368 464

Shortest 2 5 104 101

Conversion Rates April 2020 - March 2021

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

Adoption Support 

Referrals 

 

 

Comparative Data 

Over the past three years, referrals for post adoption support have increased by 19.4% 

 

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale of Glamorgan

Total Qtr. 1 5 1 3 1

Total Qtr. 2 19 2 8 6

Total Qtr. 3 10 1 4 7

Total Qtr. 4 18 1 2 4

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

R
ef

er
ra

ls

Adoption Support Referrals - April 2020 to March 2021

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Cardiff 35 40 52

Merthyr Tydfil 3 4 5

RCT 23 25 17

Vale of Glamorgan 16 11 18

Total 77 80 92

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

R
ef

er
ra

ls

Referrals - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 61



 

Expenditure per Local Authority 

64 children have received local authority funding during the year.  

 

 

3-year comparative data - Expenditure per Local Authority 

 

 

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale of Glamorgan

2020-21 £94,051.25 £0.00 £10,119.00 £63,380.00

£0.00

£10,000.00

£20,000.00

£30,000.00

£40,000.00

£50,000.00

£60,000.00

£70,000.00

£80,000.00

£90,000.00

£100,000.00

£ 
St

er
lin

g

Expenditure per LA  - April 2020 to March 2021

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale

2018-19 £75,145.85 £2,015.00 £24,785.00 £30,046.00

2019-20 £105,103.60 £0.00 £39,072.00 £55,970.00

2020-21 £94,051.25 £0.00 £10,119.00 £63,380.00

£0.00

£20,000.00

£40,000.00

£60,000.00

£80,000.00

£100,000.00

£120,000.00

£ 
St

er
lin

g

Expenditure over 3 years per Local Authority

Page 62



Overview of average expenditure per Local Authority 

The service has 272 open cases for adoption support.  49% are for Cardiff families, 24% and 

23% are for RCT and Vale of Glamorgan families respectively. The remaining 4% of open 

cases for Merthyr Tydfil are supported by the Adoption Support team. 

 

 

Birth Parent Services 

A significant increase (60%) in services offered to birth parents is observed in Quarter 4. 

This follows the recruitment of a permanent birth parent adviser and reduction in lockdown 

restrictions. 

 

Open Cases
Number of children
where funding was

granted

Average per child to
support team

Average per child
where funding was

granted

Cardiff 132 38 £712.51 £2,475.03

Merthyr Tydfil 13 0 £0.00 0

RCT 65 4 £155.68 £2,529.75

Vale of Glamorgan 62 22 £2,702.42 £2,880.91

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Overview of expenditure per Local Authority

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cardiff 2 2 1 7

Merthyr Tydfil 0 1 1

RCT 0 3 2 11

Vale of Glamorgan 2 1 2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

B
ir

th
 P

ar
en

ts

Birth Parent Support - April 2020 to March 2021

Page 63



Access to Birth Records 

 

 

3-year comparative data – Access to Birth Records 

 

 

 

 

Qtr.1 Qtr.2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Cardiff 5 8 15 14

Merthyr Tydfil 0 1 0 2

RCT 1 7 3 4

Vale of Glamorgan 0 1 4 3

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

C
as

es

Access to Birth Records - April 2020 to March 2021

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Cardiff 21 30 42

Merthyr Tydfil 4 3 3

RCT 19 11 15

Vale of Glamorgan 5 10 8

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Access to Birth Records - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 64



Intermediary Services 

 

 

 

3-year comparative data – Intermediary Services 

 

 

 

Qtr.1 Qtr.2 Qtr.3 Qtr.4

Cardiff 0 1 1 12

Merthyr Tydfil 0 0 1 0

RCT 0 3 3 3

Vale of Glamorgan 0 1 1 5

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

C
as

es

Intermediary Services - April 2020 to March 2021

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Cardiff 10 15 14

Merthyr Tydfil 3 0 1

RCT 15 6 9

Vale of Glamorgan 9 15 7

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Intermediary Services - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 65



Letterbox 

 

 

 

Children and Young People’s Service 

 

 

 

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale of Glamorgan

Active 309 68 348 83

Inactive 66 46 111 40

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Letterbox - April 2020 to March 2021

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Cardiff

Merthyr Tydfil

RCT

Vale of Glamorgan

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale of Glamorgan

Contact 8 0 0 0

Direct Work 5 1 2 9

CYPC - April 2020 to March 2021

Page 66



TESSA 

 

 

 

Training 

 

 

Referrals 2020-21
Referred by an
Adoption SW

Number needing a
SW following TESSA

Without a SW

Cardiff 16 10 5 1

Merthyr Tydfil 2 2 0 0

RCT 13 6 4 1

Vale of Glamorgan 10 5 1 3

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

TESSA - April 2020 to March 2021

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale of Glamorgan

2018-19 16 3 10 4

2019-20 11 2 6 4

2020-21 25 1 12 11

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

ts

Training - April 2018 to March 2021

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 

Adoption Panel 

Panels convened 

42 adoption panels were convened during the reporting period and is consistent with 

previous years.  As a result of COVID-19 lockdown, adoption panels were moved from face-

to-face meetings to virtual meetings held using video conferencing software.  

 

 

Case Distribution 

Cases are evenly distributed across the two panel days. 

 

 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

Panels held Monday 3 5 6 7 21

Panels Held Wednesday 3 7 5 6 21

0

5

10

15

20

25

P
an

el

Adoption Panels - April 2020 to March 2021

Cases heard Monday Cases Heard Wednesday

Q1 10 10

Q2 16 16

Q3 23 20

Q4 24 20

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

C
as

es

Case Distribution - April 2020 to March 2021

Page 69



Cases per Local Authority 

Over the course of the year, panel activity increased. 

 

Cardiff Merthyr Tydfil RCT Vale

Q1 4 2 7 4

Q2 12 3 7 5

Q3 13 3 9 6

Q4 18 3 10 8

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

C
as

es

Panel Cases per Local Authority - April 2020 to March 2021

Page 70



1 
 

Appendix 2 
Vale, Valleys & Cardiff Adoption Collaborative 

 
Mid-Year Report 2021- 22 
 
Introduction  

 
The requirement to provide six monthly reviews of the adoption service is set out in 
Regulation 39 of the Local Authority Adoption Services (Wales) Regulations 2019.This 
report provides a summary and analysis of the activity of the service during the first 
two quarters of 2021-22. This report should be read in conjunction with the Quarter 2 
Performance report which provides performance data against key indicators for the 
period up until 30 September 2021. 
 
Service Development & Governance 
 
The office has remained closed during this period although a couple of Business 
Support staff attend the office on allotted days to carry out core administrative tasks. 
The office has also been risk assessed to allow a small number of Social Work staff 
to utilise the office space for specific purposes and to improve work life balance. The 
service has continued to be delivered via a hybrid mix of face to face and virtual 
working. 
 
The service has continued to face increased pressures, particularly in relation 
Adoption Support during this time. These pressures are set against an ever-increasing 
national agenda and the implementation of the NAS Good Practice Guides during 
2021-22. A review of capacity issues and the impact of the implementation of the new 
initiatives upon service delivery was undertaken in April 2021 and presented to VVC 
Management Board. The report contained an options appraisal for additional 
resources to meet the increased demand in the immediate, medium and longer term. 
These options were further considered by the regional Heads of Service in July & 
September 2021. Additional investment to employ 2.5 Support Workers within 
Adoption Support and additional capacity within the Business Support Team was 
agreed and has been submitted as part of the cost pressures process in each of the 
four authorities.  
 
Meetings of VVC’s Management Board were held in April & July 2021 and the Joint 
Committee met in May. An additional Joint Committee meeting was convened in 
September to consider the proposals to meet capacity pressures prior to the budget 
setting process.  
 
There has been no change to the membership of the Management Board during the 
year although a new elected member has been appointed to the Joint Committee to 
represent Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. The Operational Group met in May 
& October 2021. Due to competing demands placed upon local authority 
representatives and the impact this has had upon quoracy for meetings, the terms of 
reference for the Operational Group were revised. These revisions have been agreed 
by Management Board and they now allow a quoracy of three officers from the partner 
authorities and an agreed mechanism for agreeing matters outside the meeting where 
one partner is absent. 

Page 71



2 
 

The agendas for all these levels of regional governance have been full, incorporating 
a range of matters including budget approval, performance reporting, setting service 
priorities and relevant aspects from the national agenda. IPC attended the July 
meeting of the Management Board to present the regional findings in respect of IPC’S 
Evaluation of the Adoption Support Framework. 
 
The service has continued to comply with all required performance monitoring and 
reporting to NAS. Internal data collection systems have been adapted to incorporate 
the increased range of measures required. The Regional Manager is part of a working 
group initiated by WB developing the adoption modules for WCCIS. Once completed 
it is intended that the service will transfer their record system onto WCCIS. 
 
The Regional Manager and Team Managers remain active participants in national 
forums and subgroups. The Regional Manager contributed to the development of the 
guidance in respect of the transfer of Adoption Support cases at the three year point. 
The Recruitment & Assessment Manager was part of the group developing the Welsh 
Early Permanence Strategy. 
 

Staffing  

 
The overall staffing establishment has remained the same, although there has been 
some staff turnover in all teams, particularly in the Recruitment & Assessment Team.  
Within this team, three experienced Social Workers began their maternity leave during 
late spring/early summer. In real terms, this meant the team lost the equivalent of two 
and half Social Workers. In addition, another experienced fulltime member of staff 
changed roles to fill a vacancy in the Adoption Support Team. Attempts to fill these 
vacancies were made with the roles being advertised on three occasions. The 
permanent full time and temporary part time post was successfully filled, leaving two 
full time Social Worker positions vacant. Monies have been allocated to buy in 
independent support to meet some of the backlog of assessment work in relation to 
non-agency applications. 
 
Within the Adoption Support Team, an experienced member of staff left at the 
beginning of the period to take up a post within NAS Central Team although this 
position was filled via internal transfer. Some agency cover has been provided to 
address some of the pressures within the team funded from the reserves.  
 
In terms of the grant funded posts, the Children & Young Person Co-ordinator left to 
take up a post within Children’s Services at the end of July 2021.This post was 
however successfully recruited to by September 2021, leaving only a small gap in 
service. The Transitions Worker based within the Family Finding Team left at the end 
of the reporting period although this post has now been filled via an internal 
appointment. 
 
Similar to other services, VVC has experienced more staff contracting COVID-19 
during this period requiring periods of absence, self-isolation and recuperation.  
 
 
 
 

Page 72



3 
 

Family Finding 
 
Family Finding and its’ associated activities remains a key area of activity for the region 
and the ability to place children effectively and promptly underpins all other activities.  
 
90 children have been referred for adoption from April 2021 – September 2021. 2020-
21 saw a total of 171 children and therefore the half-year position reflects a slight 
increase to referrals continuing the trend in recent years.  
 
Of the children referred so far this year around 1/3 were withdrawn within the first half 

of the year. Although lower than the withdrawal rate of 43% in 2020-21 many of the 
children referred so far this year will still be within proceedings and we anticipate a 
withdrawal rate for 2021-22 similar to those seen in previous years.  
 
During the first half of this year 46 ‘Should be Adopted’ decisions were made in respect 
of children. If this rate continues through the remainder of the year this would be an 
increase from the previous 2 years (80 and 81 respectively). If the number of referrals 
continues to increase, we would anticipate the number of SBA decisions also to 
increase. 
 
The region has recorded 46 Placement Orders being made between April and 
September 2021. If this trend continues this would reflect a marked increase in 
Placement Orders from the 2019-20 and 2020-21 figures. VVC noted a reduction in 
Placement Orders earlier than the current national trend and are now seeing these 
numbers increase again. It is not yet known whether this will be a sustained rise and 
whether this is in part due to the impact of the pandemic.  
 
43 children have been placed for adoption at the mid-year point. Compared with 65 

for the whole of 2020-21 this is an increase, and we expect to meet and likely surpass 
this figure for 2021-22. VVC continue to utilise the NAS Transitions Risk Assessment 
under Covid restrictions to ensure that the pandemic is not causing delay in placing 
children for adoption.  
 
The average waiting time from Placement Order to Placement for the first half of 2021-
22 is around 8.5 months which is a reduction from the previous year’s figures. This 
also includes several children who have been waiting longer due to their individual 
needs who we have now succeeded in matching.  
 
VVC has continued to place a high proportion of our children with VVC approved 
adopters (70%) maintaining a similar level to the previous couple of years and 

reflecting the work done by the Recruitment and Assessment team to increase in-
house approvals.  
 
At the end of September 2021 there were 61 children on Placement Orders awaiting 

an adoptive match and a further 9 children had a very strong link proceeding but not 
yet matched as at the end of March 2021 and so the number actively awaiting links 
was 52. It is positive to see a continued decrease in the number of children waiting for 
adoptive placements. 
 

Page 73



4 
 

From April 2021-September 2021 there were 38 Adoption Orders granted. Compared 
with the full year figure from 2020-21 this represents a decrease however this would 
be expected in line with a decreasing number of Placement Orders and therefore 
children being placed for adoption.  
 
The performance in respect of LJW materials remains high with 100% of life journey 

books being provided by the grant-funded workers in the local authorities with one 
exception due to extraordinary circumstances. The completion of later life letters by 
Childcare Social Workers also remains high but we have seen slightly lower figures 
for completion of this due to the capacity demands within the local authorities. 
Performance continues to be addressed through the Life Journey Work Co-Ordinator 
and the Operational Group.  
 
The Transitions Worker worked with 25 children over the first 6 months of the year 

providing essential support and preparation for children moving to adoption. At the end 
of quarter 2 this post became vacant and was recruited to with no gap in service 
delivery and from October 2021 a new worker is in post and continuing to offer this 
high-quality service to children and adopters. 
 
VVC has continued to embrace the use of all available family finding methods over 
this year. The team liaises closely with the Adoption Register Wales (ARW)/LinkMaker 
team to ensure information is updated and monitored in a timely manner. Specialist 
family finding activities have been run since October 2021 which will be reported upon 
in the end of year report. We are also approaching our 9th placement via the Adopting 
Together Service.  
 

The Family Finding Manager facilitated a series of workshops on matching for 
practitioners across the region in April & May of this year which were attended by 80 
+ participants. 
 
Disruptions and Breakdowns 
 
There have been no disruptions prior to the making of an Adoption Order in the year 
to date. 
 
Recruitment & Assessment of adopters 

 
On 1st April 2019 changes to the Adoption Agency Regulations came into force 
introducing a two-stage model of adopter assessment. Due to the pandemic Welsh 
Government allowed for an easement to the Regulations during 2020 enabling the two 
stages to run together. This, in effect, allowed services to carry on conducting 
assessments without the new stringent timescales being enforced. The temporary 
easement came to an end at the end of the reporting period and since 1st October 
2021 any new enquiries are managed purely under the new model. VVC held a re-
fresher training day for staff in September 2021 which was well received.  At present 
members of the team are progressing some of their assessments which began prior 
to 1 October under the old regime and new assessments from this date require staff 
to implement the new approach. The new approach is still bedding in and will improve 
as the new way of working becomes firmly established. NAS have introduced a 
number of new measures to monitor performance and this data will begin to be 

Page 74



5 
 

collected from Q3. VVC has had to revise internal spreadsheets to incorporate the 
new measures. 
 
VVC continues to benefit from a Recruitment and Marketing officer. This role has 
proven itself to be invaluable over the past few years and has led to the service 
consistently achieving a 100% response rate to enquiries. Having a Marketing Officer 
has also enabled to service to develop a professional, consistent and evolving 
response to the way in which we raise VVC’s profile and continue to improve the 
quality of information we share with service users. The Marketing Officer contributes 
ideas and expertise to the National Adoption Services all Wales marketing strategy. In 
addition, VVC also complements the national strategy by targeting members of the 
public specifically from our geographical area using pay-per-click advertising. We 
specifically use the platforms Facebook and Instagram. We use this method to identify 
members of the public who have generally already searched for the topic of adoption 
and/or fostering in addition to the geographical areas where we know we need to 
recruit more adoptive families. 
 
VVC continues to receive a large amount of enquiries. During Q1 & Q2 a total of 165 
enquiries were received. (Cardiff – 67, Merthyr-Tydfil – 8, RCT – 52, Vale of 
Glamorgan – 25, Other – 13). 
 
This represents a small decrease when compared to Q1 & Q2 of 2020/21 as 176 
households enquired. 
 
Information evenings have continued to be held virtually approximately every six 
weeks.  
 
Five events were held during Q1 & Q2 with 73 households attending. 
 
30 households went onto request and receive an initial visit. This is the exact same 
number of initial visits conducted during the same reporting period of 2020/21. 
 
Five preparations to adopt training courses were held during Q1 & Q2 with 37 
households attending these courses. 
 
Looking ahead, VVC’s preparation to adopt training course has seen the most 
significant change. For a number of years, VVC’s preparation training has been 
outsourced to a highly skilled independent trainer, who retired in September 2021. 
This change coincided with the changes to regulation requiring the content of the 
training to be adapted. VVC has used this as an opportunity to strengthen the 
partnership working already taking place with our neighbouring collaborative, Western 
Bay and since October 2021 the training course is now being co-delivered by a 
member of staff from VVC and a staff member from Western Bay. Whilst this change 
is new, the two courses held to date have received positive feedback from participants. 
 
During Q1 & Q2 26 new Registration of Interests (assessments) commenced. Since 

this time three have withdrawn as they each decided the either the timing or their 
circumstances were not right for them to adopt. 
 

Page 75



6 
 

31 households had their approvals ratified within Q1 & Q2. This is a sharp increase 
when compared to the 20 approvals achieved during the same period last year. On 
balance, the performance in terms of approvals is very much consistent this year as it 
has been for the past three years. 
 
Projecting ahead, VVC are currently on track to achieving our target of approving 60 
new adoptive households this reporting year. At the end of quarter 2 there were 
however 27 adopter households awaiting placements. This number is part of a national 

trend due to the reduction in the number of children awaiting placements and 
increased complexity of needs of those who are waiting. The number of adopters 
waiting is now being collated by NAS and regions have to report on a quarterly basis 
for the reasons for the delay in them being matched with a child. 
 
Adoption Panel  

 
VVC’s Panel has continued to meet on a virtual basis. 20 Panel sittings have been 
held during the period and 65 cases have been heard. 
 
There has been no change to independent Panel membership during this period 
although pressures placed upon local authority partners has impacted upon Social 
Worker membership. There is a need therefore to recruit additional Social Workers to 
sit on Panel. 
 
Post Adoption Support 

 
Requests for assessment of post adoption support needs have not diminished during 
this period with 53 new referrals having been received. This is an increase on the 
same period last year as referrals only began to increase when schools resumed. The 
increase in workload is placing a significant burden on the team and has resulted in a 
large build-up of unallocated cases. 
 
The team are putting in place an initial screening system for these referrals and an 
analysis of these cases is to be presented to Management Board in October to seek 
agreement for a letter to be sent out to all the families waiting informing them of the 
new process. 
 
The team has continued to be proactive in seeking alternative means of supporting 
families with a monthly virtual quiz, a monthly toddler group and the development of a 
birth parent support group. The toddler group moved to outdoors during the summer 
but have recently resumed meetings inhouse. 
 
By utilising some monies from the reserves, VVC has been able to commission an 
NVR course for 20 families facilitated by Adoption UK. Two courses on the Circle of 
Security have also run facilitated by an agency worker and team member. The service 
is also piloting a Welsh Language Support Group for Welsh speaking adopters 
facilitated by an external facilitator. 
 
The grant funded posts are continuing to be embedded into the region and to enhance 
the overall service provision maintaining positive links with national counterparts. The 
Birth Parent Adviser has been proactive in developing group support for birth parents 

Page 76



7 
 

and in developing links with Reflect. The newly appointed Children & Young person’s 
Co-ordinator is supporting a number of young people in the community and co-
facilitating the Connected groups with colleagues from Adoption UK. These groups 
have now resumed face to face working. 
 
Policies and Procedures  

 
At the end of 2020-21, VVC undertook an audit of policies and procedures to contribute 
to the work being commissioned at a national level by NAS to develop a common suite 
of policies for the service. This work is ongoing. 
 
The Family Finding Manager has developed a Matching Guide for practitioners which 
is based upon the Good Practice Guide and relevant research. This Guide has been 
disseminated to Childcare Teams across the region. 
 
The service has begun to use some of the new processes contained in the Good 
Practice guides such the Trauma Nurture Timeline and the revised Adoption Support 
Plan. 
 
Consultation, Engagement and Quality Assurance 

 
A priority area for the service is to develop our quality assurance framework. VVC 
managers have been working closely with the Vale of Glamorgan’s Quality Assurance 
Officer in devising robust service user questionnaires. These are being used in order 
to gain the feedback of service users and to listen to the views on the areas for 
improvement. VVC has a well-established mechanism to gain the views of service 
users from the point of enquiry to attending our preparation training and reports are 
now being collated and the findings are shared with the service. Questionnaires have 
also been developed post placement and following the Adoption Order which are also 
now being collated. Going forward there is a need to seek constructive feedback at 
the point of approval which will provide reflections upon the assessment process, 
preparation and Panel experience.  
 
In terms of Adoption Support, evaluation of the service has continued at key points of 
delivery and the TESSA Co-ordinator has developed a questionnaire for all families in 
receipt of TESSA which complements the evaluation being undertaken at a national 
level. 
 
In terms of frequency of reporting, the Quality Assurance Officer has agreed moving 
forward to share the reports on a quarterly basis so any emerging themes can be 
weaved into the reporting cycle. 
 

Complaints, Comments & Compliments  

 
One complaint has been received during this period from an adoptive parent 
concerned about the availability of services to support her adopted son. This complaint 
was investigated and resolved at stage 1. 
 

Page 77



8 
 

Staff within the service have continued to receive positive feedback on the range of 
services provided from a variety of sources. Staff are encouraged to collate this 
feedback to contribute to their own professional development plans. 
 
Conclusion, Future Priorities & Challenges 
 
Performance in respect of the placement of children and the approval of adopters has 
been maintained at a healthy level despite the ongoing constraints upon service 
delivery. In terms of children requiring adoptive placements, the challenge remains in 
being able to secure timely, appropriate matches for the cohort of children with 
increasingly complex needs. In terms of the recruitment of adopters, the challenge 
remains in being able to meet the approval targets set whilst managing the 
expectations of an increasing pool of approved adopters who are waiting.  
 
Staff vacancies within the Recruitment & Assessment Team will likely impact upon 
performance well into the next reporting year. Additionally, the impact of the new 
model of adopter assessment is not yet known and so the need to monitor timescales 
for completion of assessments will be an ongoing priority. 
 
Despite the innovative work being carried out within Adoption Support, the increase in 
demand for the service and the capacity issues within the team will continue to be a 
pressing issue for the service and key priority. The Welsh Government investment has 
provided positive benefits for the service, but the outcomes will need to be closely 
monitored and reported upon in the second half of the year to ensure continued 
funding. 
 
The national expectation that the Good Practice Guides will be fully embedded into 
regional practice during the latter part of the year will impact upon our performance in 
a number of areas and the impact will need to be continually evaluated so that gaps 
can be clearly monitored. 
 
 
Angela Harris 
Regional Adoption Manager  
December 2021 
 
 
 

Page 78



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Living Well - Corporate Self-Evaluation  
 

 
1.0 

 
SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 Self-evaluation is a rigorous process that enables Directors, Heads of Service and 
officers to be critically reflective about outcomes, service provision and leadership 
and management. 
 

1.2 This report focuses on the completion of the self-evaluation undertaken by the 

Director; its content directly relates to the work undertaken to support delivery 

within the Living Well theme within the Corporate Wellbeing Plan (Focus on the 

Future: wellbeing in our community). 
 

1.3 The report and its appendices outline key findings of the self-evaluation activity; 
and highlight areas of good practice along with areas for development.  The 
content also reflects the priorities for improvement, which will be built into Business 
Improvement Plans for the services. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 Scrutiny Committee Members review the summary report and key findings laid out 

in the report, debating its content. 
 

2.2 Committee Members review the judgements reached, assessing these for validity 

with a view to agreeing them. 

 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Self-evaluation is a business process that is rigorous and enables organisations to 

be critically self-reflective about outcomes, service provision and leadership and 
management.  Using lessons learned over previous years, the format of the self-
evaluation has been developed.  The key outcome of the process are to identify 

Date Written 18th March 2022 

Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Service Area Social Services  

Committee Date 29th March 2022 

Page 79

Agenda Item 6



areas of good practice; along with priorities for improvement which teams could 
focus on moving forward. 

 
3.2 In 2019, a refocus of the process was undertaken to ensure the self-evaluation 

documents continued to meet the organisation’s needs.  Following consideration of 
the updated documents by the Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT); the 
new format was approved for re-introduction in June 2019.  

 
3.3 As part of the self-evaluation process, it was proposed that completed questions 

should be presented before the sector-specific scrutiny committee that scrutinises 
the outputs/outcomes for the relevant service area(s).  This was seen as an 
opportunity for Committee Members and officers to review details of their services 
together; to outline positive practice and achievements whilst providing a platform to 
discussions around any challenges faced and areas for development identified. 

 
3.4 A key aim of the refocused process was to support and enable discussions between 

scrutiny Committee Members and officers and secure feedback from the Committee 
that could then be considered/used as part of future planning on how identified 
priorities would be progressed 

 
 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 Historically, the Council undertook self-evaluation activities annually on a service-by 

service basis.  The process required service managers to review project/programme 
activity and reflect on what had been achieved, as well as identifying what needed to 
be prioritised with a view to planning how this should be done.  

 
4.2 Utilising the re-focused process, the Director and her wider teams considered all 

facets of their activity when completing the key questions.  This resulted in the 

collation of these ‘service-specific’ responses into a single document to provide an 

assessment of progress across the whole directorate.   

 
4.3  This approach enabled individual services to assess their areas of work; and also 

how they contributed to the ‘bigger picture’: the positive progress against the Living 

Well objective. 

 
4.4  At the end of the 2020/2021 self-evaluation process; the following judgements were 

made by services in relation to the three key questions: 

 
Question Service 

Areas 
Judgement 

Social Services Review and Assessment 

1. Outcomes Adequate The evaluation judgements provided by Officers within 
the self-evaluation report was reviewed, challenged 
and accepted in the SER workshop (March 2021).  

2. Provision and 

Service Delivery 

Good The evaluation judgements provided by Officers within 

the self-evaluation report was reviewed, challenged 

and accepted in the SER workshop (March 2021). 

3. Leadership and 

Management 

Good The evaluation judgements provided by Officers within 

the self-evaluation report was reviewed, challenged 

and accepted in the SER workshop (March 2021). 

 

Page 80



5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The overall judgement for 2021-2022 has been self-assessed as GOOD.  This 

means services show evidence of strong features, although minor aspects may 
require improvement. 

 
5.2 A breakdown of the judgements can be found in the Self-Evaluation Position 

Statement, which can be found in Appendix A of this report. 

 

 OUTCOMES 

5.3 The coronavirus pandemic (Covid-19) has had a significant impact on Health and 

Social Care in the last two years. Lockdown, self-isolation and shielding have had a 

serious impact on well-being and quality of life in local communities. Through 

integration and collaboration we continued to provide targeted front-line responses to 

the constantly changing situation that the Coronavirus pandemic has presented, 

working in different ways to meet emerging and existing needs (when required). The 

services have worked hard to ensure people have remained safe and safeguarding 

has remained our number one priority throughout. 

 

5.4 The findings of this year’s self-evaluation shows progress continues to be made 

against the key outcomes, which the teams work towards.  The Performance 

Framework for Social Services forms part of the Social Services and Well-being 

(Wales) Act 2014 and has been the subject of a review with a number of key 

measures changing. Therefore, the key performance indicators (KPI’s) have been 

recently reviewed for 2021, and are contained within our Living Well Strategy on a 

Page (SOAP) in Appendix B. Progress made against the key indicators can be seen 

in the (SOAP). However, there is no quarterly data available at present for 2021/22, 

as the WCCIS team are currently working towards developing the necessary reports 

in order to obtain the data from the system. 

 

5.5 When reviewing the outcomes achieved over the past 12 months; the following 

observations were noted: 

 

 All services for which the Director is accountable have clear alignment between 

their work and the outcomes laid down in the Corporate Plan – Focus on the 

Future: well-being in our community.  This applies not only to the Living Well 

theme, but services also contribute to other themes across this Plan; 

 A further improvement of connectivity across teams continues to benefit the work 

undertaken to meet specific identified needs; with collaboration being undertaken 

from the earliest stages supporting the achievement of outcomes;  

 Work undertaken in conjunction with corporate support services has continued to 

be positive and has developed further over the past 12 months; 

 Safeguarding Board activities were reprioritised and a Silver and Bronze 
governance structure was adopted to co-ordinate the critical safeguarding 
activities of partner agencies. Merthyr Tydfil CBC Safeguarding chaired the 
Merthyr Bronze command leading key local agencies in sharing critical data, 
managing complex cases and overcoming challenges faced due to the pandemic; 

 Merthyr Tydfil Children’s and Adult Services have further developed internal 
communication pathways to evidence sharing and embedding recommendation 
outcomes; Page 81



 Social services staff were involved in multi-agency monitoring groups ensuring 
recommendations from child and adult practice groups are implemented and 
learning is achieved; 
  

 The pandemic has not altered our duties to vulnerable children, although 

Children’s Services have been required to make a range of adjustments in line 

with Stay At Home Rules and changing measures in place. Throughout the 

pandemic we have always operated a system that has needed to include face to 

face contact. Managers and staff have worked closely together to look at ways in 

which we can ensure we discharge our duties to the public, whilst promoting both 

public and staff safety; 

 Adult services have adapted their service offer to reflect the change in working 

arrangements and infection control requirements many of which will continue. 

These have included increasing the offer of direct payments as an alternative to 

commissioned services and recognising the impact on unpaid carers ensuring 

that we seek alternative mechanisms for engaging with them;  

 Partnership working has been critical to service delivery over the last 12-months 
and partnership working with neighbouring authorities, Cwm Taf Morgannwg and 
third sector have been essential in this period (of Covid); relationships are 
stronger than ever as a result. Examples include commissioning of a feasibility 
study around our care home sector and future proposed model for this sector and 
recommencement of the working group around the transformation of our learning 
disability services; and 
 

 In partnership with CTM and Meaningful Care Matters we have improved the 
environment of the day service for Older People with dementia and the new day 
centre has opened;  

 

5.6 The Quality Standards (1-6) outlined in the ACRF set out the priorities for 21/22. 

These areas have been integrated into the Recovery, Transformation and 

Improvement Plan (RTI) for the whole service area. Over the first 12-18 months of 

the delivery of the RTI plan, significant progress has been made against these 

elements and five of the projects listed within the RTI plan have been completed:  

 Increase the number of foster carers in Merthyr Tydfil and implement the 

Placement Commissioning Strategy Action Plan.  

 Analyse and understand our children looked after cohort (CLA) and 

continue implementation of the CLA strategy and closer to home project. 

 Implement the action plan for the Care Leavers Strategy including 

Pathway to Work.  

 Work with partners in the council and the Third Sector to finalise revised 

transition arrangements.  

 Develop Advocacy Services for adults. 

Comprehensive closure reports were developed for these areas of improvement 

which demonstrated that the actions identified in the RTI plan were completed. 

 

5.7 Each remaining project has a plan in place and is being progressed. In February 
2022, the Social Services Management Team worked with corporate colleagues to 
review their areas in the RTI Plan.  A further two projects are in the process of being 
closed: 

 Review, reset or renew all service models across social services 
 Launch the new service to support people with dementia in collaboration 

with Meaningful Care Matters Page 82



.   Additionally, some dates were realigned due to some delays as a result of the 
pandemic and all risks were reviewed. It is worth noting that the social services 
element of the plan contained key improvement actions rather than major change 
projects. Many of these revert to business as usual so they do not necessarily close 
as projects but are embedded into day to day service delivery.  

 
PROVISION AND SERVICE DELIVERY 

5.8 Positive outcomes of the pandemic is the fact that both internal and external 

partnership working has improved considerably and there is strong evidence of 

collaboration with strategic partners. Without the continued engagement with support 

services, we would not have made progress this year.  

 

5.9 Effective support has continued to be received from a number of corporate support 

services (e.g.) Finance and Accountancy (re: hardship fund/recovery grant/Winter 

pressures etc.); Health and Safety (re: PPE and risk assessments); Housing (in 

developing new accommodation with support options for care leavers) etc., and this 

has enabled service delivery to continue at pace.  By reviewing the ways services 

worked together with the corporate support services; it was found that working 

relationships could be seen to have improved since completion of the previous self-

evaluation exercise undertaken in 2020-2021.   

 

5.10 Services are also required to demonstrate how they use the sustainable 

development principle (the 5 ways of working) in all that they do.  The progress is 

judged using the following scale provided by the Future Generations Commissioner.  

  

SCORE JUDGEMENT 

2 EXCELLENT 

1.5 GOOD 

1 ADEQUATE and needs improvement 

0-0.5 UNSATISFACTORY and needs urgent improvement 

 

5.11 Areas for development identified in relation to provision and service delivery included 

a need to better align services with those of other teams and the broader corporate 

objectives and priorities to maximise contributions to these.  Achieving greater 

synergy between these services and those in other areas across the Council will 

improve the level of achievement against these common goals and objectives (e.g.) 

the Children’s Looked After Team (CLA) has worked with the Education Department 

to help individuals make positive changes to meet the needs of their children 

providing them with a stable, loving home environment. The positive progress and 

rehabilitation plan gives the children a sense of normality and demonstrates to them 

as a family, that positive outcomes can be achieved, whilst also securing improved 

outcomes across at least two themes within the Corporate Well-being Plan. 

 

5.12 Additionally, by working more closely with external support providers Council 

services would be better able to plan for future needs and gain clarity on roles and 

responsibilities that would support the development of improved working links and 

outcomes for the community. For example, there are a number of joint services and 

arrangements with RCT that are delivered on a regional basis, which includes: Page 83



 Emergency duty team – that works across three local Authorities to provide 
emergency social work cover during the times that offices are closed. 

 A regional Social Care training arrangement 

 A regionally commissioned domiciliary care contract 

 A regional Market position statement for care homes for older people and 
subsequent joint care home contract with Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB. 

 A regionally commissioned Joint equipment service 

 A regional PPE delivery arrangement to support all social care 

 A joint Stay Well @ Home service that supports the assessments of individuals at 
A&E to determine whether the person can be supported to return home rather 
than be admitted to hospital through the provision of a community support 
package. 

 4CS Commissioning Framework for placement for looked after children and 
support with developing our Placement Commissioning Strategy and Market 
Position Statement. 

 

5.13 However, court work has been very different this year and there was some delay in 

hearings due to the pandemic. Many hearings are now online and we, along with 

legal have had to adapt to this. There has been continuous support on the new way 

of working. 

 

5.14 Welsh Government has been consulting on a suite of revised performance measures 

aligned to the Social Services and Wellbeing Act. This has required a considerable 

amount of development work within the system to capture the required data for 

reporting and has had a significant [negative] impact on the work of the (WCCIS) 

performance team and social care services. A reduction in the number of staff 

working within the WCCIS team has now reached a critical level and placed greater 

reliance on a smaller number of key individuals to support the system. 

 

5.15 Through completion of the self-evaluation process, the current status is captured and 

evidences positive achievement in relation to this.  Details of the status can be found 

in Appendix C. 

 

 LEADERSHIP & MANAGEMENT 

5.16 All officers completing Question 3 of the self-evaluation process were asked to 

consider some key areas of leadership and management.  Those responding noted 

the leadership for their service was effective; with strong people management within 

the service remaining clear and evident despite the complex demands placed upon 

service managers.    

 

5.17 Throughout the last two years there has been strong leadership across the whole 

service. We have continued to provide strong leadership and support to staff at all 

levels, giving direction, undertaking scrutiny and considering how social services 

contribute to the promotion of wellbeing.  Reports are presented regularly to the 

Scrutiny Committee and to Cabinet updating members on progress, how the financial 

and demographic challenges are being tackled and how the Council is transforming 

services with its partners. 

 

5.18 The introduction of the RTI plan has allowed us time to reflect on our strategies and 

have clear plans for the future. Incorporating regional and corporate plans into one 

overarching plan that will focus on improvement. There is now a clear service 

strategy in place and a plan for financial sustainability that addresses the more long Page 84



term issues.  Partners, service users, staff, management and elected members are 

aware of the strategy and have been involved in its development. 

 

5.19  In January 2022, the Board met with the Social Services management team to gain a 
clear understanding, using a SWOT type approach, of the current situation, raise any 
concerns and discuss prospects for further improvement in sustainability into the 
future. The Board fed back that they feel assured that the services are in a good 
place with clear evidence of tangible improvement.  

 
5.20 Pressures have been seen across children and adult services during the initial 

lockdown when staff in Health were redeployed to cover demands in the hospital 

setting. Staff from children departments and mental health services in health were 

redeployed to assist. Again with the vaccine programme being rolled out now there 

are pressures on staffing vaccine centres and testing centres. 

 

5.21 Services have had to adapt to changes in legislation in respect of restrictions e.g. 

social distancing and isolating when required. It is fair to say that the pandemic has 

put Social Care provision under strain in the past months.  We are still not at full 

capacity pre covid levels for service delivery due to the restrictions still in place, but 

we continue to plan for future pressures and the changes that maybe required longer 

term as we recover from the pandemic and consider the growing needs of the public. 

 

5.22 Staff are increasingly working in an agile way; it is important that we utilise our 

learning on both the benefits and consequences of this way of working to ensure an 

appropriate balance is gained. Having a sound balance will be imperative to ensuring 

that staff are well supported in managing the complexities of their role to support our 

most vulnerable families. 

 

5.23 The new management team is working well together and we have just agreed an in 

service communication strategy 

 

5.24 Overall, resource management within the service was seen to be very effective; and 

it was noted that leadership did set the right priorities.  Team members felt clear on 

what these priorities were and also how the role they undertook linked in with these. 

This is an area we have improved on in recent years.  

 

5.25 Generally we listen to what people have to say about the service and learn lessons 

from compliments and complaints we receive. There are corporate communication 

events about service priorities and how the public feel about the services they 

receive including which areas they would prioritise in a budget consultation. There is 

also the population needs assessment, which seeks views from various people 

within the community and this then feeds into the plan and priorities set for future 

service delivery.   

 

5.26 ‘Focus on my Performance’ initiative has been rolled out with all social services staff. 

There is a clear thread throughout the service from director down about what our 

vision is and links with objectives for the whole service. Staff receive regular one to 

ones within the service and there is a clear induction process for new staff.  Each 

head of service has shared the vision of the service with their staff and the links with 

the RTI plan. 

 

Page 85



5.27 We have worked hard to ensure people have remained safe and safeguarding has 

remained our number one priority throughout. Safeguarding Board activities were 

reprioritised and a Silver and Bronze governance structure was put in place to co-

ordinate the critical safeguarding activities of partner agencies. Merthyr Tydfil CBC 

Safeguarding chaired the Merthyr Bronze command leading key local agencies in 

sharing critical data, managing complex cases and overcoming challenges faced due 

to the pandemic. 

 

5.28 During 2021, an internal safeguarding audit was undertaken. The final report was 

positive about Merthyr’s safeguarding activities with an overall rating at the highest 

end of the “reasonable” spectrum. The audit fell narrowly shy of the highest possible 

“substantial” outcome. Positive outcomes have resulted from this audit including 

increased safeguarding training for all public facing staff including elected members. 

  

5.29 A breakdown of key responses to these questions on Leadership and Management 

can be found in Appendix C. 

 

5.30 Following completion of the self-evaluation process for 2021-2022; the following  

judgements have been made by services in relation to the three key questions: 

 
Question Service 

Areas 
Judgement 

Regeneration & Public Protection Scrutiny 
Committee Review and Assessment 

1.  Outcomes Good The evaluation judgements provided by Officers within 
the self-evaluation report are presented to the 
Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny 
Committee Members for consideration on 29/03/2022.  

2. Provision and 

Service Delivery 

Good The evaluation judgements provided by Officers within 

the self-evaluation report are presented to the 

Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny 

Committee Members for consideration on 29/03/2022 

3. Leadership and 

Management 

Good The evaluation judgements provided by Officers within 

the self-evaluation report are presented to the 

Regeneration and Public Protection Scrutiny 

Committee Members for consideration on 29/03/2022 

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Through completion of this process, the Director and her teams have identified a 

number of areas for development.  Of these, a number of key priorities for 
improvement have been noted – these are captured in the Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan.  The priorities reflected in the RTI Plan for 2020-2021 were 
categorised under 14 key themes – the status of which is included below: 

 

 
Priority Current Status 

1 
Review, reset or renew all service models across social 
services  

Complete 

2 
Review existing programmes for impact of pandemic and 
risk mitigation 

In Progress 

Page 86



3 Develop Advocacy Services Complete 

4 
Continue to work with Housing colleagues to develop an 
additional extra care facility for adults 

In Progress 

5 
Launch the new service to support people with dementia in 
collaboration with Meaningful Care Matters 

Complete 

6 
Increase the number of foster carers in Merthyr Tydfil and 
implement the Placement Commissioning Strategy Action 
Plan 

Complete 

7 
Analyse and understand our children looked after cohort 
(CLA) and continue implementation of the CLA strategy 
and closer to home project 

Complete 

8 
Implement the action plan for the Care Leavers Strategy 
including Pathway to Work 

Complete 

9 
Work with partners in the council and the Third Sector to 
finalise revised transition arrangements 

Complete 

10 Develop further support for carers In Progress 

11 
Develop a cultural change programme across Social 
Services that fits with the wider council transformation 

In Progress 

12 
Work with the Third Sector and social enterprise 
organisations to improve the range of community-based 
support available 

In Progress 

13 
Agree with partners how we need to commission 
accommodation services in the future that reflects the 
needs of the people living here 

In Progress 

14 
Strengthen MTCBC’s contribution to, and benefits from, 
working within the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional 
Partnership 

In Progress 

Each of the remaining projects listed above has a clear plan in place and is being 
progressed. 
 

6.2 Following approval being secured from Full Council; work will begin in 2022-2023 to 
refocus the RTI Plan to ensure the requirements of the Economic Recovery Plan are 
fully aligned to reduce the chances of duplication; and develop a more streamlined 
method of reporting. 
 

6.3 We want to ensure that we are able to meet our statutory requirements whilst taking 
into account our revised ways of working. 

 
6.4  We want to support people to maintain their independence and continue to live within 

their community. 
 
6.5 We will continue to engage with people who use our services to improve their 

wellbeing outcomes.  This will include developing innovative ways to ensure children, 
young people and adults are given opportunities to share their views and shape the 
services they need. 

 

Page 87



6.6 Using quality assurance systems and processes, we will ensure our services are 
provided appropriately and lessons are learnt to improve services where necessary. 

 
6.7 Through projects such as Closer to Home and Stay Well at Home, we will continue 

to support people to be part of their community and to maintain their independence 
where possible. 

 
6.8 We will continue to work closely with our regional and Third Sector partners to 

develop and improve support and services. 
 
6.9 We want to have access to appropriate performance data and ability to report on the 

new performance framework in a timely manner. 
 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 The priorities for improvements as identified through the 2021/22 Self-Evaluation 

process for the service areas moving forward will be: 
 

 The biggest priority for this year is the recovery from COVID and to ensure that 
all services are reviewed in light of the pandemic and service changes made to 
ensure we can meet demand and need in the future, and address the areas 
within the Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan; 

 Report against the six Quality Standards within the ACRF Director’s Annual 
reporting process and any other CIW Regulation and Inspection requirements; 

 Development of a quality and assurance process within adult services; 

 Ensure we explore funding opportunities to facilitate change; 

 Contribute to developing enhanced availability of preventative services where 
gaps exist- there is a need to look at impact of the past year and how we can 
deal with the anticipated high demand. (Children’s); 

 Develop the accommodation strategies for children and adults (children 
residential and extra care adults). (Adults); 

 Working with regional partners around the priorities set within the RPB and the 
sub groups;  

 Regional market feasibility report; 

 Enhancing quality assurance process to incorporate feed back into services 
development; 

 Working with corporate teams, continue to develop measures using the metrics in 
the new performance framework; 

 Prepare business case considering evidence base for service needs for business 
coordination / admin. (Children’s); 

 Work with WCCIS team to support preparation for the new social services 
performance measures. Whilst this is a priority area, the responsibility of the task 
sits under the Head of Corporate Services; 

 Implementation of the revised SLT structure and the wider management 
engagement programme; 

 Succession planning (this needs to be undertaken with work force development; 

 Improve consistency in carrying out performance appraisals; 

 Receive regular and respond to sickness monitoring information; 

 Thomas Town house feasibility study;  

 Review areas of priorities based on the completion of the needs assessment; 

 Implement any recommendations from the Estyn Inspection that are relevant to 
Social Services; and  

 Embedding practices (children’s). Page 88



 
7.2 Service Leads will actively contribute to the development of the next iteration of the 

Corporate Plan, bringing the lessons learned throughout delivery of Focus on the 
Future to inform the Council’s primary strategic document. 

 

7.3 We will continue delivery of actions and tasks set down in the Council’s Recovery, 
Transformation and Improvement Plan; monitoring and assessing the impact of the 
changes made to ensure targeted improvements are secured. 

 
7.4 We will ensure we effectively communicate key messages through developed use of 

social media platforms; sharing information on services/activities delivered, placing a 
greater focus on sharing details of opportunities and key successes achieved. 

 

7.5 We will encourage the targeted sharing of key information across teams to support 
an improved understanding of service delivery, identifying opportunities for 
integration and collaboration of services, and gaining clarity on the impact being 
made collectively. 

 

7.6 Ensure Elected Members remain up-to-date with any service changes and have 
current information to share with community members when fulfilling their roles. 

 

7.7 Heads of Service and Senior Managers continue to ensure personal objectives of 
staff clearly link to corporate and service outcomes. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

 
8.1 The corporate self-evaluation process is based around the services/activities 

delivered and should reflect the contribution made in relation to the four wellbeing 
objectives set down by the Council in focus in the Corporate Wellbeing Plan.   

 
8.2 The improvement activities identified in this report directly contribute to our wellbeing 

objective: People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  

 
8.3 Through completion of other self-evaluation responses; we will also be able to 

demonstrate our team’s contribution to support progress against other themes and 
objectives contained within the Corporate Plan: 

 
8.4  The work undertaken by Living Well objective also supports the Best Start to Life 

objective (Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped 
with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals). 
Some examples of this are: 

 MTCBC worked in collaboration with RCTCBC to deliver the regional work 
programme as set out by the National Fostering Framework through the 
Regional Development Manager for Fostering Services to create a 
regional front door for fostering recruitment. This allows for increase the 
number of enquiries to foster for MTCBC as well as improving response 
times to potential applicants and promoting a customer focussed 
response, which in turn can result in creating a better start to life for 
children throughout the Borough.  

 Work within the Children’s Looked After Team (CLA) has helped 
individuals make positive changes to meet the needs of their children 
providing them with a stable, loving home environment. The positive 
progress and rehabilitation plan gives the children a sense of normality Page 89



and demonstrates to them as a family, that positive outcomes can be 
achieved. 

 The Pre-Birth Pathway has been developed across the service to enhance 
our work with families at a pre-birth stage to support children having the 
best start to life. 

 Family Group Conferencing has been embedded across Children’s 
Services to support families working together to support children and 
young people to safely remain at home. 

 Parental advocacy has been piloted to support families in communicating 
their views to promote them in coproducing care and support planning for 
their families to promote achieving better outcomes for children, young 
people and their families. 

 Within Children’s Services the level of service experienced feedback 
gained has been increased to ensure that improving individuals 
experience of our service is at the heart of service development. 
 

8.5  There has also been a number of positive contributions to the Working Life 

objective (People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes 
Merthyr Tydfil as an attractive destination) too. A few examples of these are 
stated below:  

 By working with the Employability Services we have supporting children 
looked after to secure positive opportunities in relation to training, 
development, volunteering and work opportunities via the Pathways to 
Employment project.  

 Early Help Hub: Special Guardianship Support Worker has helped 
individuals with their living situations and helped them access their 
National Insurance Numbers for them to be in a position to apply for jobs.  

 Focused work has been undertaken in conjunction with Education to 
support holistic support for young people to support them being engaged 
learners. 

 

8.6 The work being undertaken also aligns to the key priorities contained within the Cwm 
Taf Morgannwg Public Services Board Well-being Plan “Our Cwm Taf”. 

8.7 Through completion of the self-evaluation exercise; the Director, Heads of Service 
and officers have identified that meaningful contributions are made to the seven 
national wellbeing goals; supporting the Councils to maximise its’ response to the 
Council’s response to the requirements of the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. 

 
 

LISA CURTIS JONES 
DIRECTOR FOR SOCIAL SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR TONY ROGERS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR  

SOCIAL SERVICES  
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   

   

 
Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s Constitution?  
 

NO 

Page 90



 
 

SERVICE POSITION STATEMENT 
 
 

Service Area(s):   

People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 
  

Overall Judgment Good 
 
Strengths 

 Strong evidence of services being outcome-focused and adaptable and responsive 
to change; 

 

 Positive outcome of the pandemic is the fact that both Internal and External 
partnership working has improved considerably. Without the continued engagement 
with support services, we would not have made progress this year – regular 
meetings with for example, Finance, HR, Complaints, Performance, Housing; 

 

 Comprehensive; good quality evidence secured to support outcomes claimed; 
 

 Regular reviews of performance undertaken through the management teams and 
within service areas; through reports presented at scrutiny; Cabinet and Full Council; 
also being picked up as part of the developing Quarterly Performance and 
Improvement reporting meetings; 
 

 Positive progress has been made in relation to the Living Well Recovery theme 
within the Council’s RTI Plan; 
 

 Clear strategies in place in Adults and Children’s services; 
 

 The review and refocus of key partnerships which has taken place during 2021-2022 
has led to a more clear alignment with these partnerships and the Council’s key 
priorities; 
 

 Clear evidence of the use of the 5 ways of working across all service areas led by 
the Director and the Heads of Service; 
 

 Evidence of effective leadership with strong people management within the service 
remaining clear and evident despite the complex demands placed upon service 
managers;  

 

 Positive outcome from the internal safeguarding audit has led to increased 
safeguarding training for all public facing staff including elected members; 
 

 Newly appointed Quality Assurance Officer is helping us understand more about 
service user experience which will inform future service improvement; 
 

 Children’s and Adult Services have further developed internal communication 
pathways to evidence sharing and embedding recommendation outcomes; 

 

 Evidence of increased engagement with the Third Sector; 

Appendix A 

Page 91



 

 Sound evidence of joint / collaborative working leading to service development and 
improvement.  For example: 

 Regional fostering front door was developed in recent years.  
 Development of the Neighbourhood Learning Centre (NLC) project with 

Housing 
 Development of new Day Services at Kier Hardie – Ty Enfys (first in UK to 

receive the ‘Meaningful Care Matters’ Outstanding Accreditation). 
 Feasibility underway for children’s residential accommodation. 

 

 In relation to the Improvement and Assurance Board’s focus on Social Services’ 
improvement and resilience, the Board have stated that they feel assured that the 
services are in a good place with clear evidence of tangible improvement. 
 

 

Priorities for improvement  

 The biggest priority for this year is the recovery from COVID and to ensure that 
all services are reviewed in light of the pandemic and service changes made to 
ensure we can meet demand and need in the future, and address the areas 
within the Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan; 

 Report against the six Quality Standards within the ACRF Director’s Annual 
reporting process and any other CIW Regulation and Inspection requirements; 

 Development of a quality and assurance process within adult services; 

 Ensure we explore funding opportunities to facilitate change; 

 Contribute to developing enhanced availability of preventative services where 
gaps exist- there is a need to look at impact of the past year and how we can 
deal with the anticipated high demand. (Children’s); 

 Develop the accommodation strategies for children and adults (children 
residential and extra care adults). (Adults); 

 Working with regional partners around the priorities set within the RPB and the 
sub groups;  

 Regional market feasibility report; 

 Enhancing quality assurance process to incorporate feed back into services 
development; 

 Working with corporate teams, continue to develop measures using the metrics in 
the new performance framework; 

 Prepare business case considering evidence base for service needs for business 
coordination / admin. (Children’s); 

 Work with WCCIS team to support preparation for the new social services 
performance measures. Whilst this is a priority area, the responsibility of the task 
sits under the Head of Corporate Services; 

 Implementation of the revised SLT structure and the wider management 
engagement programme; 

 Succession planning (this needs to be undertaken with work force development; 

 Improve consistency in carrying out performance appraisals; 

 Receive regular and respond to sickness monitoring information; 

 Thomas Town house feasibility study;  

 Review areas of priorities based on the completion of the needs assessment; 

 Implement any recommendations from the Estyn Inspection that are relevant to 
Social Services; and  

 Embedding practices (children’s). 

 

Page 92



 

SUMMARY 

 
 

 

 

 

1.1 How good are outcomes for the community? Good 

1.2 Is there evidence of continuous improvement or 
excellence in customer results? 

Good 

1.3 How has the service improved the wellbeing and attitudes 
towards learning of children and young people? 

Not applicable 

 
 
 

 

 

 

2.1 How well does the service engage with corporate support 
services to help improve service provision and delivery? 

Good 

2.2 How well does the service understand and take 
advantage of opportunities for collaboration and 
partnership working? 

Good 

2.3 How well does the service understand and use 
sustainable development (the five ways of working)? 

Good 

 
 
 

 

 

3.1 How effective is leadership of the service? Good 

3.2 How effective is people management in the service? Good 

3.3 How effective is resource management in the service? Good 

3.4 Does the service set the right priorities? Good 

3.5 How well does the service engage with feedback from 
stakeholders and address issues they identify? 

Good 

3.6 How does the service fulfil its’ statutory responsibility 
relating to safeguarding? 

Good 

 
Breakdown of judgement by each self-evaluation question 
 

 KEY QUESTIONS OVERALL 
JUDGEMENT 

1 Outcomes Good 

2 Provision Good 

3 Leadership and Management Good 

Question 
1: 

Outcomes 

Question 
2: 

Provision and Service Delivery  

Question 
3: 

Leadership and Management 

Page 93



 

Appendix B 

P
age 94



CORPORATE WELLBEING OBJECTIVE (THEME)  –  LIVING WELL                                                                APPENDIX C 

 

Question 1:  Outcomes 

Key Points identified 
 The coronavirus pandemic (Covid-19) has had a significant impact on Health and Social Care in the last two years. Lockdown, self-isolation and shielding have had a serious impact on 

well-being and quality of life in local communities. 

 Through integration and collaboration we continued to provide targeted front-line responses to the constantly changing situation that the Coronavirus pandemic has presented, 
working in different ways to meet emerging and existing needs (when required). 

 We have worked hard to ensure people have remained safe and safeguarding has remained our number one priority throughout. 

 Pro-active in communicating with residents about the changes to services and the way it intended to help keep people safe (website updated and regular updates via Facebook and 
Twitter). 

 There is clear evidence across Social Services of strong partnerships and collaborations working (regional, private or third sector and public agencies) in order to set the right priorities 
and achieve joint outcomes. 

 A regional discharge guidance document was developed so that there was clarity for both health and care home staff in respect of the testing arrangements that needed to be in place 
prior to discharge to a care home. 

 Significant emotional strain on staff working in care homes where there were sometimes several deaths within a week. 

 The improvement plan is on track and many of the projects have been completed. 

 High demand in the service, which has been impacted by the pandemic from March 2020 to date. 

 Head of service has been in post for 20 months. 

 Welsh Government supported Local Authorities with hardship funding, however, there have been costs incurred within Social Services that cannot be recuperated via hardship funding. 

 Children’s Services, we ensured regular and appropriate contact was made with children, young people and carers at home. 

 Staff continuing to work at home and in office, social distancing and PPE remaining in place.  

 Some short term absences in last few weeks (Christmas 2021/New Year 2022) due to the new variant. 

 The Social Services element of the RTI plan is focused on improving resilience and work has continued and progressed throughout 21/22. There was some delay initially due to the 
pandemic but we are now back on track.  In summary, it is broken down into three areas: 

 Recovery; 

 Resources and Service Improvement; and 

 Resilience and Sustainability. 

 Continued to deliver services to those people who have been assessed as being the most vulnerable in our community. 

 During 2021 an internal safeguarding audit was undertaken. The final report was positive about Merthyr’s safeguarding activities with an overall rating at the highest end of the 
“reasonable” spectrum. The audit fell narrowly shy of the highest possible “substantial” outcome. Positive outcomes have resu lted from this audit including increased safeguarding 
training for all public facing staff including elected members. 

 Along with all other LAs in Wales, we have reported key data weekly / fortnightly to WG on, for example, CLA and CP data, care home admissions, domiciliary care demand, staffing.  

 There have been some issues with WCCIS, but we have reviewed and revised our Strategy On A Page (SOAP) to include relevant measures and targets based on the new national 
performance framework in the Act. 

 
 
 

P
age 95



Good Practice  Areas for Development (potential) Priorities for Improvement 
Children’s Services  

 The vision and strategy for children services in line with 
the Improvement Plan has been reviewed and updated. 

 The service is performing well in terms of timeliness of 
response, child protection process and review (when 
comparing performance with other authorities and in 
Wales).  

 Early Help Hub has good engagement and clear plans. 
This represents a key collaborating with preventative 
service that involves all Council department and other 
partners  under the Tackling Poverty agenda. 

 Supporting Change Team has now been embedded into 
the service and is having a positive impact on court work 
and children looked after.  

 We are enormously proud of our looked after young 
people, some of whom have achieved local, national and 
international recognition for their outstanding 
achievements. 

 We are accessing grant to pump prime and test 
innovation e.g. ICF for MAPSS and SW@H1 and 2. 

 Continue to see progress in our transition work with 
adult services, Placement Commission Strategy with 
housing colleagues, and Employability colleagues on the 
Pathway to Work.  

 We have a plan for tackling financial challenges.  

 Services strategy and implementation plans are 
evidence based and well understood. 

 Staff report significant improvements in communication 
across the service and inclusion in service developments 
through the ‘Passion 4 Practice’ programme 

 Family group conferencing has been embedded to 
support families utilising their strengths to overcome 
safeguarding concerns.  

Carers 

 Carers were asked what level of support they required, 

this included telephone calls, emails, visits (triage in 

place), liaising with other agencies and reviewing 

current support that included contingency planning due 

to COVID and PAs isolating.  Carer feedback suggested 

 Report against the six Quality Standards within the 
ACRF Director’s Annual reporting process and any other 
CIW Regulation and Inspection requirements; 

 Continue to consult, engage and communicate with our 
partners and the people who use our services to ensure 
that they inform change and improvement 

 Ensure we highlight our success and achievements by 
more pro-active engagement with comms 

 Where appropriate, embrace the opportunities for 
changing ways of working and service provision brought 
about by the pandemic  

 We now need to implement the strategic aspirations 
identified across the region 

 
 

 The biggest priority for this year is the recovery 
from COVID and to ensure that all services are 
reviewed in light of the pandemic and service 
changes made to ensure we can meet demand 
and need in the future. 

 Report against the six Quality Standards within 
the ACRF Director’s Annual reporting process and 
any other CIW Regulation and Inspection 
requirements; 

 Working with corporate teams, continue to 
develop measures using the metrics in the new 
performance framework 

 Ensure we explore funding opportunities to 
facilitate change 

 

P
age 96



they found this hugely beneficial as it was the only 

contact they had during lockdown. 

 Level of engagement with carers – drop in events, 

virtual coffee mornings, using social media to share 

information 

 Flexible approach to increasing hours of support to 

carers in line with frequent significant changes in 

support networks due to the pandemic. 

 Advocated for parents to access school provision. 

 Support groups were established virtually and, since 

August 2021, some moved to social distanced 

facilitation. 

 Flexible approach to increasing hours of support in line 

with frequent significant changes in support networks 

due to the pandemic. 

 Progress made in terms of new ways of working – some 

staff able work from home 

 The ‘Front Door’ has not shut down during the crisis  

 Staff have adjusted to the ‘new normal’ risk 

Management in terms of Covid 

 Feedback that staff feel supported and engaged to work 

efficiently towards our improvement plans – “done with, 

not done to.” 

 Evidence of support to staff wellbeing - for example - 

use of recovery grant to support wellbeing - event for all 

SCW in Merthyr planned for January 

 Working with corporate to develop MTCBC as a carer 
friendly organisation 

 Embedding of service developments within the 
Supporting Change Team and Early Help Hub 

 
Adults  

 Care homes in Merthyr Tydfil were able to continue 
to provide sufficient staff cover, which was down to 
the dedication of the staff working in this area. 

 Previous issues with capacity, but in the last year 
we have recruited to an additional Principal Officer 
in Adult services which has had a positive impact on 
the service. 

 The vision and strategy for adult services in line 

P
age 97



with the Improvement Plan has been reviewed and 
updated. 

 Throughout the pandemic adult social care has 
needed to consider and adapt how support is 
provided in a changing climate. 

 Staff have adapted quickly and positively to new 
ways of working remotely through the use of new 
technologies. 

 Strong examples of partnership and collaborative 
working with other LAs, public agencies and third-
party organisations throughout all of the services 
areas. 

 All of the areas within Social Services have clear 
strategic direction and many areas work to long-
term plans. 

 Ty Enfys Dementia Day Care Unit - first in UK to 
receive the ‘Meaningful Care Matters’ Outstanding 
Accreditation. 

General 

 Partnership working with neighbouring authorities, 
Cwm Taf Morgannwg and Third Sector have been 
essential in this period (of Covid) and relationships 
are stronger than ever as a result. 

 The quality assurance framework is helping us 
understand more about service user experience, we 
have been successful in appointing a quality 
assurance officer across adults and children services 
to assist with this work in future. 

 The new management team is working well 
together and we have just agreed an in service 
communication strategy 

 Safeguarding Board activities were reprioritised and 
a Silver and Bronze governance structure was put in 
place to co-ordinate the critical safeguarding 
activities of partner agencies. Merthyr Tydfil CBC 
Safeguarding chaired the Merthyr Bronze command 
leading key local agencies in sharing critical data, 
managing complex cases and overcoming 
challenges faced due to the pandemic. 

 Social services staff were involved in multi-agency 
monitoring groups ensuring recommendations from 
child and adult practice groups are implemented 

P
age 98



and learning is achieved.   

 Merthyr Tydfil Children’s and Adult Services have 
further developed internal communication 
pathways to evidence sharing and embedding 
recommendation outcomes. 

 
 

 
The overall assessment of for the Living Well theme in relation to Outcomes is: 

  

 

 

Question 2:  Provision & Service Delivery 

Key Points identified 
 

 Relationships with corporate support services were primarily positive with judgements as follows: 
 

 

Key 

Good - G 
 

Mixed - M 

Poor - P  Limited Contact - LC 

 

Corporate Support 
Services Children’s Adults 

Corporate Comms M M 

Legal G G 

HR G G 

Accounting / 
Insurance 

G G 

Procurement G G 

Performance & 
Scrutiny 

M P 

Business Change G G 

Democratic Services   

ICT G G 

Business Support - 
Civic 

  

 

 Positives outcome of the pandemic is the fact that both Internal and External partnership working has improved 
considerably. Without the continued engagement with support services, we would not have made progress this year. 

 Strong evidence of collaboration with strategic partners. 

 Court work has been very different this year and there was some delay in hearings due to the pandemic. Many hearings are 
now online and we, along with legal have had to adapt to this. There has been continuous support on the new way of 
working. 

 Welsh Government has been consulting on a suite of revised performance measures aligned to the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act with a proposed implementation date of April 2021. This will require a considerable amount of development 
work within the system to capture the required data for reporting. 

 WCCIS system has had a significant [negative] impact on the work of the performance team and social care services and 
further development is required in this area. 

 A significant reduction in the number of staff working within the WCCIS team has now reached a critical level and placed 
greater reliance on a smaller number of key individuals to support they system. 

 The risk to being able to report essential information is considerable and will be exacerbated by the introduction of the new 
performance framework.  

 Works towards joint outcomes with key partners/stakeholders 

 Evidence of work with third sector. 

 Evidence of cross-Council work with Housing (Good); Tackling Poverty (Mixed); Education and Schools (Good); Planning 
(Good); Estates (Good) Revenues and Benefits (Good); and Public Protection Services (Good) 

 Regional partnership working on: Regional Safeguarding Board; Regional Partnership Board (RPB); Joint Equipment Board; 
Cwm Taf and Bridgend Emergency Duty Team; Transformation Steering Group; Joint Learning Disability Commissioning 

P
age 99



Contact Centre   

Print and Design G G 

Internal Audit M M 

Complaints  G G 

Health and Safety G G 

Welsh and Equalities  G G 

Admin Support M M 
 

Group; Social Care Workforce Development. 

 There are a number of joint services and arrangements with RCT that are delivered on a regional basis which includes: 

 Emergency duty team – that works across 3 local Authorities to provide emergency social work cover during the 

times that offices are closed. 

 A regional Social Care training arrangement 

 A regionally commissioned domiciliary care contract 

 
 
 A regional Market position statement for care homes for older people and subsequent joint care home contract with Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB. 
 A joint Stay Well @ Home service that supports the assessments of individuals at A&E to determine whether the person can be supported to return home rather than be 

admitted to hospital through the provision of a community support package. 
 4CS Commissioning Framework for placement for looked after children and support with developing our Placement Commissioning Strategy and Market Position Statement. 

 

 Many of the services to support adults are now being planned on a regional basis with the health & social care partners within the Cwm Taf Morgannwg footprint. 

 Governance arrangements between the planning groups, senior managers and Regional Partnership Board are under review due to the revised regional footprint that now incorporates 
Bridgend. 

 Work is currently underway through the transformation agenda to enhance community-based services to support people to remain in the community. 

 The integrated Care fund has provided the opportunity to implement alternative models of care and enhance existing services to improve outcomes for individuals. 

 Work ongoing with wellbeing partners to enhance community-based services. 
 

How well does the service understand and use sustainable development 

Score  Judgement Description  

2 
EXCELLENT 

evidence of being an exemplar for others in this 
regard 

1.5 GOOD good evidence and embedded practice 

1 ADEQUATE and needs improvement good evidence but with development needs 

0.5 UNSATISFACTORY and needs urgent improvement some evidence but much to do 

0 UNSATISFACTORY and needs urgent improvement no evidence 

 
 

Wellbeing scores – Children’s 
Long-term – 1.5 
Prevention – 1.5 
Integration – 1.5 
Collaboration – 1.5 
Involvement  1.5 
 
 
 
 

Wellbeing scores – Adults  
Long-term – 1.5 
Prevention – 1.5 
Integration – 1.5 
Collaboration – 1.5 
Involvement  1.5 
 

Overall -  Good 

 

Good Practice  Areas for Development (potential) Priorities for Improvement 
 Regular meetings with allocated accountant to monitor 

budgets 

 Regular meetings with legal under Public Law 
Outline 

 Collaboration with Housing in developing new 
accommodation with support options for care 
leavers 

 Capacity has been increased within performance 
management team (WCCIS) team and we now need to 
ensure that we can report on the new performance 
framework and improve the availability and quality of 
performance data for social care. 

 In respect of admin we have good support from those 
working within the service but need to revisit and 

Children’s 

 Contribute to developing enhanced availability of 
preventative services where gaps exist- there is a need 
to look at impact of the past year and how we can deal 
with the anticipated high demand. 

 Prepare business case considering evidence base for 
service needs for business coordination / admin. 

P
age 100



 Close working with benefits and finance on revised 
offer to foster carers 

 Close working with finance officers re hardship 
fund/recovery grant/Winter pressures etc. 

 Close working relationship with health and safety re 
PPE and risk assessments. 

 Close working relationships with EHOs re: risk 
assessments and advice re: care homes.  

 Regular collaboration with WCCIS staff regards 
performance management 

 Update reports from complaints on open 
complaints and outcomes / learning. 

 Development of Early help Hub - Early Help Hub 
brings together housing, prevention, education. 

 Regular meetings with procurement as part of the 
commissioning process. 

 Complaints team will work collaboratively with 
adult services and the complainant to reach an 
agreeable outcome. 

 Regular updates and meetings with HR. 

 Agile working and IT equipment set up very 
positive. 

 Monthly Senior Leadership meetings. 

 Good attendance at Safeguarding reference Group 
by other areas of the Council. 

 Collaboration between Public Protection officers re 
professional strategy meetings when required. 

 Updated business continuity. 

 Regional fostering front door was developed in 
recent years.  

 Development of the Neighbourhood Learning 
Centre (NLC) project. 

 Positive work with employability for a pathway to 
work for care leavers. 

 Development of new Day Services at Kier Hardie – 
Ty Enfys (first in UK to receive the ‘Meaningful Care 
Matters’ Outstanding Accreditation). 

 Care Home Action Plan 

 Joint Care Home provider meetings. 
 

update the admin review and see if the current capacity 
in sufficient for service delivery.  

 Further develop and review relationships with 
prevention services. 

 Looking at areas where we can consider integration with 
Health Board.  

 Working on regional plans for children’s accommodation 
– therapeutic provision. 

 Adult Services working on Extra Care plans for future in 
Merthyr Tydfil. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Adults 

 Develop the accommodation strategies for children 
and adults (children residential and extra care adults). 
 

General 

 Address areas within the Recovery, Transformation 
and  Improvement Plan and recovering from impact of 
the pandemic. 

 Work with WCCIS team to support preparation for the 
new social services performance measures. Whilst this 
is a priority area, the responsibility of the task sits 
under the Head of Corporate Services. 

 Working with regional partners around the priorities 
set within the RPB and the sub groups.  

 
 

P
age 101



The overall assessment of for the Living Well theme in relation to Provision and Service Delivery is: 

 

 
 

 

 

 Question 3:  Leadership & Management 

Key Points identified 

 Some of the areas of transformation and improvement were delayed due to the need to refocus resources in other areas for a short period of time. Within the last year we have 
been able to consider the recovery, transformation and improvement of the service, and review the plans we had put in place. 

 Prior to the outbreak of Covid-19 Merthyr Tydfil was working with the ‘Improvement Board’ to consider areas of Transformation and Improvement.  Social Services already had plans 
in place to look at future service delivery and were in the process of drawing up plans to take the service forward.  Some areas we have been able to progress, but others had been 
delayed due to the pandemic, which as we have moved out of restrictions we have start to address.  We are now focussing on recovery from the pandemic.  We have been able to 
make positive progress in some areas with some projects being completed. 

 Services have had to adapt to changes in legislation in respect of restrictions e.g. social distancing and isolating when required. It is fair to say that the pandemic has put Social Care 
provision under strain in the past months.  We are still not at full capacity pre covid levels for service delivery due to the restrictions still in place, but we continue to plan for future 
pressures and the changes that maybe required longer term as we recover from the pandemic and consider the growing needs of the public. 

 The introduction of the RTI plan has allowed us time to reflect on our strategies and have clear plans for the future. Incorporating regional and corporate plans into one overarching 
plan that will focus on improvement. There are now a clear service strategy in place and a plan for financial sustainability that addresses the more long term issues.  Partners, service 
users, staff, management and elected members are aware of the strategy and have been involved in its development. 

 There are clear regional plans in place across Children and Adults, which both focus on recovery, prevention and integration work. 

 Service strategy has been informed by : 
o Awareness of national legislative drivers 
o Awareness of corporate objectives and our part in that – Focus on the Future 
o Awareness of the regional partnership strategy and our contribution to that 
o Population Needs Assessment 
o Performance and demand data 
o Quality assurance work, deep dives of cases – esp. those where there has been a poor outcome 
o Service user voice 
o Staff views 
o Regional priorities set at the Children Board, Adult Board, Safeguarding Board.  

 Throughout the last two years there has been strong leadership across the whole service. We have continued to provide strong leadership and support to staff at all levels, giving 
direction, undertaking scrutiny and considering how social services contribute to the promotion of wellbeing.  Reports are presented regularly to the Scrutiny Committee and to 
Cabinet updating members on progress, how the financial and demographic challenges are being tackled and how the Council is transforming services with its partners. 

 There has been regular communications with staff from Director level and heads of services to ensure that staff are updated regards current guidelines and messages around vaccines 
and track and trace. This has been received well by staff. 

 ‘Focus on my Performance’ initiative has been rolled out with all social services staff. There is a clear thread throughout the service from director down about what our vision is and 
links with objectives for the whole service. Staff receive regular one to ones within the service and there is a clear induction process for new staff.  Each head of service has shared the 
vision of the service with their staff and the links with the RTI plan.  

P
age 102



 The vision and plan has been shared with cabinet member and scrutiny members and appropriate challenge has been received. 

 There has been a change in how we work with agile working being more of a focus due to COVID. Staff have had to adapt to these changes and initially adapt very quickly. 

 We have very effective resource management within the service. We have a detailed Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan. We meet as a management team once a 
fortnight to update the plan and ensure the areas above are considered. We provide updated information to each Improvement Board on a monthly basis. We also meet monthly with 
the Social Services accountant to discuss the budget, and consider areas where we are overspending and underspending. I feel this is an area we have improved on in recent years. 

 Generally we listen to what people have to say about the service and learn lessons from compliments and complaints we receive. There are corporate comms events about service 
priorities and how the public feel about the services they receive including which areas they would prioritise in a budget consultation. There is also the population needs assessment 
which seeks views from various people within the community and this then feeds into the plan and priorities set for future service delivery.   

 
CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 Within the past two years, there has been a new Head of Service in post, initially on a fixed term contract but made permanent in September 2020. This was a very positive 
appointment and is having a big impact on Children Services, with a change in culture and focus on preventative work.  

 In 2018, we developed a resource panel to ensure a consistent approach to decision making about resources. We also developed a strategy and action plan for financial sustainability. 
Every week at resource panel we note positive outcomes and cost avoidance – this includes work with families where we have successfully prevent entry to care or escalation to higher 
cost resources/ Sometimes we record good thing for young people such was achievements. 

 Restructure to one of the fostering roles into a contracts officer has shown great success in monitoring contracts and spend. 

 The service invited service user feedback in the following way: 
o As part of our quality assurance framework - dip sampling involves contacting public who have used the service to invite views  
o Via the review process 
o Via our compliments process 
o As part of our contract with Voices from care contract 
o Involving service users in service development 
o Consultation around child protection conferences. 

 
ADULTS SERVICES  

 We have made progress with the Performance reviews for staff and staff receive regular supervision.  

 Care home staff and domiciliary care staff are being tested regularly for COVID and this is where we have seen the biggest impact in respect of COVID with both staff and residents 
testing positive, some being ill and some residents dying. 

 We have recruited to an additional Principal Officer in Adult services, allowing some extra capacity for the Head of Adult services. 
Commissioned services are monitored in a number of ways which include: 

 Commissioning Panel - This meeting takes place weekly with managers across adult services, procurement, contract monitoring and finance and assessment. The areas monitored are:- 
o New requests for services and these are being commissioned in the most appropriate way and the use of alternative solutions considered. 
o Any contractual issues that have been identified both locally and across the commissioning network.  
o Capacity across the key areas such as residential/ nursing placements within Merthyr and RCT as a number of people are supported in care homes in the Cynon Valley. 

Capacity within the domiciliary care sector is also monitored. 
o Whether there are any safeguarding concerns in respect of the providers. 
o The meeting also provides an opportunity to share information across the care management teams. 

 Contract monitoring -The contract monitoring team work closely with providers of both domiciliary care and residential care to broker packages and ensure good quality assurance 
across the sector. The Contract Monitoring Manager works collaboratively with senior management within Adult social care to identify any issues and implement good practice. As a 
whole the procurement and contracting team work effectively with senior managers to ensure value for money through tendering and contracting and to resolve any issues with 
existing contracts (including better alignment of service specifications and categories of support) 

 Budget Management - There are several layers of budget management which include, budget managers receiving detailed information from the finance team in relation to spend in the 

P
age 103



areas they are responsible for. Managers are expected to review the information to ensure that any spend allocated to the cost centre is correct and any miscoding errors are relayed 
to the finance team to address. 

 Accommodation services (residential and day services) have scheduled individual meetings with the finance team in order to ensure budgets are correct and to project requirements 
that then feed into the work around the MTFP. Individual service budgets are then collated into an adult service budget and meetings are held with finance staff on a regular basis to 
monitor the position and to forecast any implications for the financial year. These meetings are utilised as an opportunity to identify risk areas and challenge is provided by financial 
staff. 

 Further challenge in respect of budgets is provided during Social Services budget challenge meetings. Whilst every attempt is made to forecast expenditure due to the nature of the 
support provided through Adult Social Care accurate forecasting can be difficult as people’s needs can change and specialist placements can significantly impact of the budget. Our 
Cabinet and Portfolio member also attends a sample of budget challenge meetings to enable him to have oversight of the social services spend. 

 Wherever possible grant opportunities are maximised such as the Integrated Care Fund to ensure that additional resources to develop services are available. This provides both an 
opportunity and a risk as the use of grants does not ensure sustainability. 

 Regular contact with service users and families is undertaken as standard in the residential care homes. This forms part of the mandatory annual return to CIW and will feed into the 
quality assurance process which is currently under development. 

 Whilst undertaking consultation on proposed changes to residential services a number of consultation methods were employed to offer stakeholders the opportunity to be involved. 
These included questionnaires, group meetings and face-to-face consultation alongside an offer to engage via telephone or email if appropriate. 

 Building upon this work with the recent consultation on day services stakeholders have also been offered a range of opportunities to be consulted. We have also commissioned 
independent specialist organisations to conduct facilitated workshops with users of the service to ensure their voice can also be heard. 

 Managers are visible to family members and service users and contactable if required to discuss any issues. We ensure that feedback is provided where appropriate.  

 Co-production was at the heart of the work undertaken in relation to the LD commissioning statement. 
 

Good Practice  Areas for Development (potential) Priorities for Improvement 
 Restructure of SLT 

 Engaging with the wider management team 

 Social Services SMT 

 CO of Social Services Communications 

 Staff Briefings 

 Regular comms throughout the year to all staff. 

 Service values and principles that have been developed 
with staff 

 Pasion4Practice 

 Performance appraisals/supervision 

 Management of sickness process. 

 Questionnaires completed during inspection showed 
that staff felt supported by the management team. 

 Services strategy and updates at scrutiny committee 

 Updates re RTI plan. 

 Regular meetings with Cabinet lead. 

 Care Leaver’s Strategy – Make your Own Decision was 
informed by young people’s views and young people 
names the strategy 

 Specification for Personal Adviser Service was informed 

 Need to communicate our successes, and achievements 
more widely. 

 Social Work recruitment and retention – at the moment 
MTCBC feels in a good place but this is a national issue 
and we need to ensure we retain staff.  

 Recovery from Pandemic - Continue to deliver the 
projects we have set within the RTI plan.  

 Succession Planning  

 Improve consistency in carrying out performance 
appraisals 

 Receive sickness monitoring information for whole 
service on a regular basis 

 A quality assurance officer now appointed and needs to 
adapt the QA process developed for children services 
across the adult social work teams and service areas 

 Resource Panel in children/commissioning panel in 
adults 

 Strategy for sustainability 

 Positive Outcomes Posters  

 Capitol work at Ty Gurnos and relocation of Lysfaen. 

 Implementation of the revised SLT structure and the 
wider management engagement programme  

 Succession planning (this needs to be undertaken with 
work force development). 

 Improve consistency in carrying out performance 
appraisals 

 Receive regular and respond to sickness monitoring 
information 

 Development of a quality and assurance process 
within adult services  

 Regional market feasibility report 

 Thomas Town house feasibility study 

 Review areas of priorities based on the completion of 
the needs assessment  

 Implement any recommendations from the Estyn 
Inspection that are relevant to Social Services  

 Enhancing quality assurance process to incorporate 
feed back into services development 

 Embedding practices (children’s) 
 

P
age 104



by what matters most to care leavers  

 Life Journey Work Practice Guidelines – informed by 
young people’s video: Lost and Found 

 Passion4Practice – informed by service user experience 

 Child practice review workshops   

 A co-productive approach was taken to the creation of 
the priority areas for work under the Learning Disability 
Commissioning Statement. Facilitated workshops were 
held with people with a learning disability to identify 
their preferred areas of priority. Each of these areas of 
priority is being addressed through a multi-agency sub 
group with their own action plan. Previous plans were 
disregarded to be replaced by ones set to meet the 
priority areas identified by people living with a learning 
disability.  Each group is chaired and facilitated by a 
person with a learning disability and People’s First. 

 The service performed well at last inspection in terms of 
timeliness to responses and decision making at the front 
door. Our presence at MASH is robust and well 
supported. Having a qualified social worker in EHH 
ensures a good safeguarding eye is available to support 
sound safeguarding practice in early help.  Equally, Panel 
exists to look at step up / down. 

 Embed recently completed regional work achieving 
increased adult safeguarding consistency across our 
safeguarding board area in line with changes to the 
Wales Safeguarding Procedures. 

 Embed the new self-neglect policy which with positive 
interdepartmental communication and co-operation. 

 Following a capacity exercise we appointed to a Senior 
Practitioner Post within Adult Safeguarding . This has 
increased resilience within the service. 

 Both Adults and Children services were inspected within 
last 18 months and inspectors commented that Merthyr 
Tydfil was safe. 

 
 

 Capitol work at Kier Hardie Dementia day services.  

 Proactive at obtaining grands/funds  

 Aligning our demands and budget forecasting  

 Closely monitor budget spends (using trend data) 

 Regional market feasibility report 

 Market stability and sustainability analysis 

 Thomas Town house feasibility study 

 Explore resources required (arising Population Needs 
Assessment) 

 Review areas of priorities based on the completion of 
the needs assessment  

 Implement any recommendations from the Estyn 
Inspection that are relevant to Social Services  

 Enhancing quality assurance process to incorporate feed 
back into services development 

 WICCS  

 Embedding practices (children’s) 

 Develop awareness and ownership of contextual 
safeguarding more widely across Council Departments 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

The overall assessment of for the Living Well theme in relation to Leadership and Management is: 
  

 

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2021/22  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee Members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached Forward Work Programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 17th March 2022 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 29th March 2022 

Page 107

Agenda Item 7



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 108



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 109



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 110



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

21st  April 2021 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 21th April 2021  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111

https://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s53896/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/s53896/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 112



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Committee 
Date  

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  Cross Cutting 
Strategies and 

Plans 

8th June 
2021 

Forward Work 

Programme 

2020/2021 

 

Cllr Bill Smith (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The draft Forward Work Programme is developed at 

the beginning of the municipal year by the Members of the Social Services 

Scrutiny Committee, which includes the areas the members wish to focus on 

throughout the year. However, it is a fluid document and it may change due 

to the needs of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee. Therefore, the 

committee is to consider and approve the Forward Work Programme as it 

stands for Social Services (2020/2021). 

Recovery, 

Transformation & 

Improvement Plan 

(Governance) 

The Supporting 
Change Service 
(Strategy Update) 
 

Taryn Stephens (Head of 
Children Service)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a 
position statement on the Supporting Change Service. The 
report will highlight the progress being made in this service area, areas of 
development and improvement.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
(Completed 
Projects/ Key 
Projects) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at 
they key projects. For this meeting an overall update will be given and 
details around the projects that have already been completed.  
 
 
 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
13th July 

2021 
 

Annual Report on 
Social Services 
(2020/21) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Consultation:- as part of the preparation for the Annual Social Services 
report we are required to consult with stakeholders. This session is with 
scrutiny members to consider the past year and look at areas of 
development in 21/22. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Update on the 
Position of Care 
Homes (Recovery 
Plan) 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Service)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a position 
statement on the position within the care home sector. The report will also 
identify key areas for development and improvement.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 

P
age 113



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 (Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Covid Recovery 
Plan 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult  
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: This is to provide an overview to Scrutiny members 
of the past year and the impact on COVID on social services. With a view to 
outlining the plans to recovery.  

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Safeguarding 
Audit Report 
Findings (From 
Internal Audit) 

Jon Eyre (Principal Officer 
for Safeguarding)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Chris 
Davies (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: A corporate review of safeguarding was undertaken 
by Internal audit in April/May 2021. This report outlines the findings and 
recommendations from this audit.  

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

7th 
September 

2021 

Corporate Self 
Evaluation KQ1 – 
Outcomes 
Deferred until 
further notice  
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult  
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement. The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key questions 
which is linked to Outcomes. They will be required to scrutinise the proforma 
outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at key 
projects.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

P
age 114



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Annual Report on 
Social Services 
(2020/21) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Chris Davies 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will present the 
Annual Report on Social Services for 20/21. This report should contain 
all further updates from any additional consultation and previous comments 
made by Scrutiny, before submitting to Full Council. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service 
(YOS) (Annual 
Report - listed for 
Cabinet on 16/06) 
 

Lyndon Lewis (Youth 
Offending Service 
Manager)/Taryn Stephens 
(Head of Children 
Services/ Cllr Chris Davies 
( Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Youth Offending Service (YOS) is a multi-agency 
team which is made up of members of the Police, Probation, Health, 
Education, Substance Misuse and Social Services; as well as other specific to 
the team. The YOS deals with young people between the ages of 10 and 18 
who are involved in the criminal justice system and those who are just on the 
periphery of becoming involved in the system.  
The committee requires a position statement on the performance within the 
Cwm Taf region along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and 
how these have been overcome. The report is also to consider key areas for 
development and improvement for 2020/21 within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

12th 
October 

2021 

Annual Report – 
Social Services 
Complaints and 
Compliments 
(2020/21)  
 
Deferred until 4th 
Jan 2022 (agreed 
in 12th October 
Scrutiny). 
 

Gaynor Lewis (Corporate 
Complaints Officer)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Tony 
Rogers (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services 
Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the 
operation of their Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments Policy and Procedures. 
The complaints reports are completed retrospectively after the complaints 
have been resolved; this can take up to 6-8 months after the financial year. 
The committee has requested an end of year report 
(2020/21) for consideration and challenge. The report should include any 
details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 
The report is also to identify key areas for development and improvement 
for 21/22. 

 
Focus on the 
Future 
SSWBA 

Adult Social Care 
Strategies – Day 
Services (position 
of ds, implications 
of closure and 
support provided) 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Service)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a position 
statement in respect of Day Services. The report is also to identify key areas 
for development and improvement.  

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

P
age 115



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Children Services 
Strategies – Early 
Help Hub 
 

Taryn Stephens (Head of 
Children Service)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Tony 
Rogers (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children Services will provide a position 
statement in respect of the Early help Hub. The report is 
also to identify key areas for development and improvement. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

23rd 
November 

2021 

Update on 
Staffing Capacity 
(Children’s and 
Adult Services)  
 
(requested by 
Members on 12th 
October Scrutiny) 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social Services)/ 
Taryn Stephens (Head of 
Children Service)/ Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult  
Service) Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Information Report: As a result of challenge and discussions in 12th October 
Social Services Scrutiny Committee, Members have requested an 
Information Report on staffing numbers throughout the Social Services 
during the pandemic (and currently) for both Adults and Children’s Services. 
This report should also include details on staff employed to cover issues 
during the pandemic and staff employed through Covid funding.  

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 
SSWBA. 
Focus on the 
Future. 

Update on Budget 
Position 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an 
update on Social Services budget and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within 
the department. This report should also give any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 

Children Services 
Strategies – 
Corporate 
Parenting Board 
(also to cover 
CLA) 
 

Taryn Stephens (Head of 
Children Service)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Tony 
Rogers (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children Services will provide a position 
statement in respect of the Corporate Parenting Board and Children Looked 
after. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at key 
projects.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

P
age 116



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

4th January 
2022 

Regional 
Partnership 
Business 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position 
summary along with a current position update on this service within Merthyr 
Tydfil 
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Corporate Self 
Evaluation KQ2 – 
Provision & 
Service Delivery 
 
Deferred until 
further notice  
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult  
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement. The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key questions 
which is linked to Outcomes. They will be required to scrutinise the proforma 
outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Annual Report – 
Social Services 
Complaints and 
Compliments 
(2020/21)  
 
Deferred from 
12th October 
2021. (Agreed by 
members in 12th 
October Scrutiny). 
 

Gaynor Lewis (Corporate 
Complaints Officer)/Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Tony 
Rogers  (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services 
Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the 
operation of their Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments Policy and Procedures. 
The complaints reports are completed retrospectively after the complaints 
have been resolved; this can take up to 6-8 months after the financial year. 
The committee has requested an end of year report 
(2020/21) for consideration and challenge. The report should include any 
details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 
The report is also to identify key areas for development and improvement 
for 21/22. 

 
Focus on the 
Future 
SSWBA 

 

Verbal Update  Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Verbal Update: 
The Chair has requested a verbal update on the impact of Covid-19 on the 
service at the beginning of each scrutiny meeting due to the current 
increased positive cases of the Omicron variant.   

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

P
age 117



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

15th 
February 

2022 

Cwm Taf 
Safeguarding 
Board Annual 
Report (and 
current update) 
 

Nicola Kingham 
(Safeguarding Board 
Manager)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Safeguarding is a clear priority for the Council. As a 
Local Authority we have a duty to safeguard children and adults at risk as set 
out by the Social Services and Well-Being Act (SSWBA). Therefore, the 
committee has requested a summary of the Safeguarding Board Annual 
Regional Plan, which is to also identify the key areas of improvement 
going forward both regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 
The cover report should include any trend/current data specific Merthyr 
Tydfil and details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been 
overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2021/22. 

 
Focus on the 
Future 
SSWBA 

Adult Advocacy 
Strategy 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Service)/Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014 defines advocacy services as: “services which provide assistance (by 
way of representation or otherwise) to persons for purposes relating to their 
care and support”. The act refers to services being provided by independent 
professional advocates in relation to adults’ and children’s care and support. 
Adult Advocacy was identified as an area for improvement in the Social 
Services Recovery, Transformation, and Improvement Plan. This is an update 
to scrutiny members on the current position regards adult advocacy.  
The report should also provide any details of issues / barriers experienced 
and how these have been overcome and priorities going forward, and any 
analysis of the engagement undertaken and a draft of the co-produced 
strategy (if possible). 
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

RTI Plan Update 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult 
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Chief Officer for Social Services will provide an 
updated report around the Recovery and transformation plan, looking at key 
projects.  
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

 Verbal Update  Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 

Verbal Update: 
The Chair has requested a verbal update on the impact of Covid-19 on the 
service at the beginning of each scrutiny meeting due to the current 
increased positive cases of the Omicron variant.   

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 

P
age 118



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 

Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29th March 
2022 

 
 

Corporate Self 
Evaluation KQ3 – 
Leadership & 
Management 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult 
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers 
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement. The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key questions 
which is linked to Outcomes. They will be required to scrutinise the proforma 
outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant supporting 
evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Vale, Valleys & 
Cardiff Adoption 
Collaborative 
(VVC) Annual 
Report 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/ Lisa 
Curtis-Jones (Chief Officer 
Social Services)/Cllr Tony 
Rogers (Cabinet Member 
for Social Services and 
Deputy Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - This report is to provide a regional annual position 
summary for the VVC adoption collaboration, along with a current position 
update on this service within Merthyr Tydfil. 
 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
 

Adults and Young 
Carers Update 
 

Taryn Stephens (head of 
Children Services)/Angela 
Edevane (Head of Adult 
Service)/Lisa Curtis-Jones 
(Chief Officer Social 
Services)/Cllr Tony Rogers  
(Cabinet Member for 
Social Services and Deputy 
Leader) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny on the 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Adults and Young Carers. 
Details should also be provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome or how you plan to overcome them. The report is 
also to consider key areas for development and improvement for 2021/22 
within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

 
 

10th May 
2022 

 
 

 
 

Cancelled due to May elections. 

P
age 119



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Additional Topics for Consideration  

2021/22 Self-Evaluation 
(3 questions) 
Dates of completion of 
2021/22 SER questions 
are yet to be confirmed. 
 
Item to be presented on 
29th March 2022 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) / 
Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Tony 
Rogers (Portfolio 
Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement.  The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key 
questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Focus on the Future 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan - 
Adult Advocacy 
 
Item presented on the 
2nd February. This is to 
be brought back to 
Scrutiny 6 months from 
the date it was 
presented to provide 
committee members 
with an update on the 
position/ development 
of this particular item. 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / 
Councillor Tony Rogers 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014 defines advocacy services as: “services which provide assistance (by 
way of representation or otherwise) to persons for purposes relating to their 
care and support”. The act refers to services being provided by independent 
professional advocates in relation to adults’ and children’s care and support. 
Adult Advocacy has been identified as an area for improvement in the Social 
Services Recovery, Transformation, and Improvement Plan, therefore, the 
members request an update report to be presented on the development of 
advocacy services for adults. The report should also provide any details of 
issues / barriers experienced and how these have been overcome and 
priorities going forward, and any analysis of the engagement undertaken 
and a draft of the co-produced strategy (if possible). 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
 
Focus on the Future 
 
SSWBA 

Edge of Care (Strategy 
Update) Deferred from 
April to next committee 
cycle. Agreed by Chair 
on the 14th April 2021. 
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Tony Rogers 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 21/22, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2021/22 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the Future  
 
SSWBA 

Emergency Duty Team 
(based in Pontypridd) - 
Members have 

Emergency Duty Team / 
Lisa Curtis Jones (Director 
of Social Services) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A few of the Members has experienced or been 
informed of negative or poor customer service from the Emergency Duty 
Team (based in Pontypridd). 

Focus on the Future  
 
SSWBA 

P
age 120



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

suggested that this is a 
potential topic of 
interest for the next 
municipal year. – Agreed 
by Chair on 4th Jan 2022 

Members were interest in a report to be presented to scrutiny regarding 
numbers of calls being received and all performance related issues. 
 

Dementia Action Plan 
Members have 
suggested that this is a 
potential topic of 
interest for the next 
municipal year. – Agreed 
by Chair on 4th Jan 2022 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services). 

Scrutiny & Challenge: Members have suggested that this is potential a topic 
of interest for the next municipal year. 

Focus on the Future  
 
SSWBA 

Safeguarding Workshops 
- Members have 
suggested that this is a 
potential action for the 
next municipal year. – 
Agreed by Chair on 15th 
Feb 2022 

Jon Eyre (Safeguarding 
Manager) / Nicola 
Kingham (RCT) / Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: The Chair suggested that the Members attend a 
Safeguarding workshop (hosted by the Safeguarding Manager) on a six 
monthly basis to improve awareness of the area. 

Focus on the Future  
 
SSWBA 

Youth Offending Service 
(YOS) Workshop - 
Members have 
suggested that this is a 
potential action for the 
next municipal year. – 
Agreed by Chair on 15th 
Feb 2022 

Lyndon Lewis (YOS 
Manager) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: The Chair suggested that the Members attend a Youth 
Offending Service (YOS) workshop (hosted by the YOS Manager) to improve 
awareness of the area and address any challenges experienced within the 
Borough. 
 

Focus on the Future  
 
SSWBA 

    

 

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Adult and Children’s Services Carers Strategy
	5 Vale, Valleys and Cardiff (VVC) Adoption Collaborative Annual Report for 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	6 Living Well - Corporate Self-Evaluation
	7 Forward Work Programme 2021/22
	Appendix


